
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

      APRIL 7, 2014 



Table of Contents

Agenda 3
Public Hearing and Action:

Cover Sheet 6
88-66 Case Analysis 7
Application 17
Site Plan 19
Wetland Plat 20
Amended Sketch Plan 21

Public Hearing and Action:
Cover Sheet 22
87-56 Case Analysis 23
Amended Sketch Plan 33
Concept Plan 34
Community Meeting 35
Application and Documents 59

Public Hearing and Action:
Cover Sheet 63
13-21 Brumsey Ridge 64
Preliminary Plat 74
Wetland Delineation 79

Public Hearing and Action:
Cover Sheet 80
14-02 Case Analysis 81

Public Hearing and Action:
Cover Sheet 91
Moyock SAP 92

Presentation on NC 2-1-1 by Keith Letchworth, East Carolina
Behavioral Health

NC 2-1-1 Description 132
Consideration of Ordinance Amendment to Allow Certain
Commercial and Governmental Activities Involving Motor
Vehicles on the Beach Strand and Foreshore from the Dare
County Line to the North Beach Access Ramp between May 1
and September 30.

Cover-Beach Driving Ordinance 133
Amendment to Beach Driving Ordinance 134

Consideration of Ordinance Amendment to Make Certain
Changes to Outdoor Tour Operator Regulations and Provide for
Violation as a Civil Offense

Cover-Outdoor Tour Operator Amendment 136
Amendment-Outdoor Tour Operator 137

Appointments to Whalehead Solid Waste Advisory Board
Whalehead Solid Waste Board Form 144

Appointments to Economic Development Advisory Board

1



Economic Development Advisory Board 145
Approval of March 17, 2014, Minutes

March 17 Minutes 146
Budget Amendments

Budget Amendments 167
Award of Beach Cleanup Contract

Beach Cleanup Memo 180
Project Ordinance - Southern Parallel Taxiway; NC Division of
Aviation Grant 36237.8.9.1

Project Ordinance 181
Project Ordinance - Bus Parking Area

Project Ordinance - Bus Parking 183
License Agreement Granting Use of Wine & Swine Service
Mark

Wine and Swine License Agreement 185
Exhibit A-Wine and Swine 188

Resolution Accepting State Aid to Airports Block Grant and
Authorizing County Manager to Enter into a Grant Agreement
with NC Department of Transportation for the Southern Parallel
Taxiway (Design/Bid/Environmental Documentation

Resolution 2014-State Aid to Airports Block Grant 189
Resolution in Support of Recognition of World War II Coastwise
Merchant Mariners

Resolution-Merchant Marines 190
Resolution Declaring Southern Outer Banks Water System
Surplus Items

Cover-SOBWS Surplus Items-Corolla Light 194
Resolution-Surplus SOBWS Items 195

Resolution to declare vehicles surplus
Surplus Resolution 196

CDBG Monthly Status Report
Cover Sheet 197
CDBG Report 198

2



Document last changed: 4/2/2014 3:44 PM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, April 07, 2014 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

Work Session 
 
6:00 PM     Minimum Lot Size and Transition Standards  
 
7:00 pm Call to Order 
 

A) Invocation-Reverend Keith Hamm, Powells Point Christian Church 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 
C) Approval of Agenda 
D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; 
please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 

Administrative Reports 
 

A) Presentation on NC 2-1-1 by Keith Letchworth, East Carolina 
Behavioral Health  

B) Cooperative Extension's Report to the People  
 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 88-66 Villages of Ocean Hill:  Request to 
amend a Sketch Plan/Use Permit to establish General Business zoning 
and commercial landscaping use in the Villages at Ocean Hill in Corolla, 
directly south of the Enviro-Tech Wastewater Treatment Plant, Tax Map 
114, Parcel 3K, Poplar Branch Township. 
 

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 87-56 Monteray Shores, PUD:  Request 
to amend the sketch plan and use permit to increase the commercial 
allocation within the planned unit development by 0.62 acres, Tax Map 
115, Parcel 3S, Poplar Branch Township. 

3



Document last changed: 4/2/2014 3:44 PM 

 
C) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge, Phase 2:  

Request for a preliminary plat and use permit for a 4 lot subdivision phase 
located in Moyock on the north side of Brumsey Road approximately 1/4 
mile from the intersection with Tulls Creek Road, Tax Map 49, Parcel 82A, 
Crawford Township. 
 

D) Public Hearing and Action: PB 14-02 Shore Shot Pawn and Gun:  
Request a use permit to operate a pawn shop in Grandy at 6599 Caratoke 
Highway, Tax Map, 108, Parcel 9, Poplar Branch Township. 
 

E) Public Hearing and Action: Moyock Small Area Plan:  Examines unique 
issues, concerns, and hopes of the community and works to establish 
public policy that accomplish the vision cast in this plan. 
 

New Business 

 
A) Consideration of Ordinance Amendment to Allow Certain 

Commercial and Governmental Activities Involving Motor Vehicles 
on the Beach Strand and Foreshore from the Dare County Line to the 
North Beach Access Ramp between May 1 and September 30.  
 

B) Consideration of Ordinance Amendment to Make Certain Changes to 
Outdoor Tour Operator Regulations and Provide for Violation as a 
Civil Offense. 
 

C) Board Appointments: 
1. Appointments to Whalehead Solid Waste Advisory Board 
2. Appointments to Economic Development Advisory Board 

 
D) Consent Agenda: 

1. Approval of March 17, 2014, Minutes 
2. Budget Amendments 
3. Award of Beach Cleanup Contract 
4. Project Ordinance - Southern Parallel Taxiway; NC Division of 

Aviation Grant 36237.8.9.1 
5. Project Ordinance - Bus Parking Area 
6. License Agreement Granting Use of Wine & Swine Service Mark 
7. Resolution Accepting State Aid to Airports Block Grant and 

Authorizing County Manager to Enter into a Grant Agreement with 

4



Document last changed: 4/2/2014 3:44 PM 

 
NC Department of Transportation for the Southern Parallel Taxiway 
(Design/Bid/Environmental Documentation 

8. Authorize County Manager to Execute Five Year Lease Agreement 
with Ricoh for Register of Deeds Copier 

9. Resolution in Support of Recognition of World War II Coastwise 
Merchant Mariners 

10. Resolution Declaring Southern Outer Banks Water System Surplus 
Items 

11. Resolution to declare vehicles surplus 
12. CDBG Monthly Status Report 

 
E) Commissioner’s Report 

 
F) County Manager’s Report 

 

Closed Session 
Closed session pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the 
county attorney in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege and pursuant to 
N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-318.11(a)(5) to establish or to instruct the public body's 
staff concerning the position to be taken by or on behalf of the public body in 
negotiating the price and other material terms of a contract or proposed contract 
for the acquisition of interest in real property by purchase, option, exchange, or 
lease held by Carolina Water Services of North Carolina, Inc., located at 1100 
Club Road, Corolla, NC, for any public purpose. 

 

Adjourn 

5



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title 
 
Request to amend a Sketch Plan/Use Permit to establish General Business zoning and commercial landscaping use in the 
Villages at Ocean Hill in Corolla, directly south of the Enviro-Tech Wastewater Treatment Plant, Tax Map 114, Parcel 3K, 
Poplar Branch Township. 
 
 
Brief Description of Agenda Item 
 
The applicant is proposing to establish material and equipment storage for a landscape contractor in the Villages at Ocean 
Hill.  The site is not visible from NC12, however it is located in a conservation area. 
 
 
Planning Board Recommendation: 
 
Mr. Bell moved to approve PB 88-66 with the findings of fact and staff recommendations included in the case 
analysis.  Mr. Craddock seconded the motion.  Ayes: Mr. Bell, Mr. Cooper, Ms. Overstreet, Mr. Clark, Ms. 
Newbern, Mr. Cartwright and Mr. Craddock.  Nays:  Ms. Bell. 
 
   
 

 
Board Action Requested 
 
Action 
 
 
Person Submitting Agenda Item 
 
 
Ben Woody 
 
 
Presenter of Agenda Item 
 
 
Ben Woody 
 

6



CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 

DATE: April 7, 2014 
PB 88-66  Villages at Ocean Hill, Amended Sketch Plan/Use Permit 

 
ITEM:   PB 88-66  Villages at Ocean Hill, Amended Sketch Plan/Use Permit  

 
LOCATION: Located directly South of the Enviro-Tech Wastewater Treatment Plant, in 

Corolla, within the Poplar Branch Township. 

TAX ID: 0114-000-003K-0000 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: Single Family Residential - Outer Banks (SFO)    
  
PRESENT USE: Undeveloped Land 
 
OWNER:  Midlantic Builders, LLC 
   James V. Bickford III 
   P.O. Box 2225 
   Kitty Hawk, North Carolina 27949 
 
APPLICANT:  Bissell Professional Group 
   P.O. Box 1068 
   Kitty Hawk, North Carolina 27949  

  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Wastewater Treatment Plant SFO  
SOUTH Conservation (US Fish and Wildlife Service) SFO 
EAST:  Landscaping Services SFO (GB) 
WEST: Conservation (US Fish and Wildlife Service) SFO 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Conservation within the 

Corolla subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 0.55 acres 
 
NUMBER OF UNITS: NA 
       
PROJECT DENSITY: NA  
 
UTILITIES: NA     
 
 
PUD ALLOCATION: Total PUD land area: 153.50 acres 

 
Total Open Space Provided: 84.79 acres (55.2%)  
Total Open Space Required: 53.70 acres (35%) 
 
Total Proposed Commercial Allocation:  11.75 acres (7.7%) 

 Total Allowable Commercial Allocation: 15.35 acres (10%) 

1 
7



 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

Addition to Villages at Ocean Hill Commercial (GB) use area for the purpose of material and 
equipment storage and landscape operations, similar to previously approved sites to the North 
and South.  No impervious coverage is proposed.  Stormwater runoff and sedimentation will 
be managed using perimeter swales and check dams.  The existing approved accessway will 
be utilized.   

 
II. USE PERMIT REVIEW STANDARDS: 

Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 

Use permits (UP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the UP procedure, property uses which would otherwise be 
considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of approval 
to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a UP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and staff findings of 
fact are outlined as follows: 

 
1. The use will not endanger the public health or safety. 

 
Based on the suggested finding provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is 
probably true that the use will not endanger the public health or safety. 
 
Suggested Findings: 
a. No public health or safety concerns have been identified in connection with the 

proposed use.  
 

2. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony with 
the area in which it is located. 
 
Based on the suggested findings provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is 
probably true that the use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will 
be in harmony with the area in which it is located. 
 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The use is similar to approved uses to the North and South of the site (Storage, 

Stockpiling, and Equipment and Landscaping Operations) and is therefore in harmony 
with the area. 

 
 

3. The use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plan. 
 
Based on the applicants response to Technical Review Committee comments concerning the 
sites Conservation classification in the Land Use Plan, and subsequent review of the Land 
Use Plan policies which lead to the following suggested findings, staff has determined it is 
probably true that the use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially 
adopted plans. 
 
The applicant provided the following statement addressing the Technical Review 
Committee’s Concerns regarding conformity with the Land Use Plan: 
 

2 
8



While the Land Use Plan classifies the area as Conservation, we believe the proposed 
use is compatible, since it is related to a nursery operation, including storage of 
materials and equipment used to grow and maintain landscape areas.  Also, we 
believe that Land Use Plan Policy OB2 is supported by this proposal.  OB2 states “So 
as to minimize COMMERCIAL STRIP DEVELOPMENT and maximize the traffic moving 
capability of NC12, Currituck County shall encourage commercial development to 
cluster at appropriate locations rather than disbursing along NC12.”  The proposal 
locates a compatible commercial use well off of NC12 and adjacent to other similar 
uses in an area that has been reserved by the developer for that purpose.  Concerning 
the wetland fill, this activity has already been authorized by the Army Corp of 
Engineers. 
 
Potential impacts to sensitive areas are being minimized and mitigated by storing 
equipment toward the existing roadway and away from adjacent wetlands, and by 
installing a swale and vegetative filter along the northern boundary, so that any 
pollutants can be captured and filtered prior to leaving the site.  

 
Suggested Findings: 

The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Conservation within the Corolla subarea.   

Conservation Areas 
The purpose of the Conservation class is to provide for the long-term management and protection 
of significant, limited, or irreplaceable areas. Proper management is needed to conserve the 
natural, cultural, recreational, scenic or biologically productive values of these areas. The 
Conservation class should be applied to areas that should not be developed at all (preserved), or 
if developed, done so in a very limited manner characterized by careful planning and cautious 
attention to the conservation of environmental features. Infrastructure and services, public or 
private, should not be provided in these areas as a catalyst that could stimulate development. The 
Conservation class includes: 

1. Areas of Environmental Concern, as defined in 15A NCAC 7H (e.g. coastal wetlands, estuarine 
and coastal shorelines, estuarine waters, public trust waters, etc.) 

2. Freshwater wetland areas under the jurisdiction of the US Army Corps of Engineers' 404 
Wetlands Permit Program and as generally identified by the National Wetlands Inventory of 
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 

3. Certain critical wildlife habitat areas as may be designated by the State Natural Heritage 
Program and approved by the County Commissioners for inclusion in this class. (e.g. Great 
Marsh on Knotts Island, Currituck Banks/Swan Island Natural Area, Currituck Banks Corolla 
Natural Area, Pine Island/Currituck Club Natural Area, Northwest River Marsh Game Land, 
and many other marsh areas on the mainland.) 

4. Other similar lands, environmentally significant because of their natural role in the integrity of 
the coastal region and which include, but are not limited to: bottom land hardwoods, pocosins, 
and swamp forests containing significant productive, natural, scenic, cultural or recreational 
resources, and as may be approved by the County Commissioners for inclusion in this class. 

3 
9



Due to the low-lying nature of much of Currituck County, and the prevalence of wetlands in the 
County, the Conservation class is the most extensive of the four land classes. Oftentimes, the 
scattered, widespread nature of such areas (e.g. 404 wetlands) precludes their mapping except 
at a very generalized level of detail. In such instances, the standards of the Conservation class 
shall be applied in accordance with the site specific information made available during special 
studies and/or the land development process.   
 
As stated above, much of the land included in the Conservation classification is environmentally 
sensitive and therefore already protected through existing, federal, state, and local regulations.  
However, for areas within the classification that would be considered developable, uses such as 
agriculture, agriculture related services, and extremely low density residential development (1 
unit per 3 acres or less) would be permitted.   With the exception of agricultural related uses, 
nonresidential uses should not be encouraged.  It is anticipated that any uses within the 
Conservation area would be served by individual on-site water and wastewater. 

 
The proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan, some of which are: 

 
POLICY ES4: In approving new developments, Currituck County shall support the retention 
or creation of a vegetated buffer area along ESTUARINE SHORELINES as a simple, 
effective and low-cost means of preventing pollutants from entering estuarine waters. 
Exceptions to this requirement may include developments involving pre-existing man-made 
features such as hardened shorelines, ditches, and canals. Farming and forestry operations 
that abide by appropriate “best management practices” are also exempt. The County 
also supports CAMA use standards for all COASTAL SHORELINES, whether estuarine or 
otherwise.  
 
POLICY WQ6: Currituck County supports the retention or preservation of VEGETATED 
BUFFERS along the edge of drainage ways, streams and other components of the 
estuarine system as an effective, low cost means of protecting water quality. 
 
POLICY OB2: So as to minimize COMMERCIAL STRIP DEVELOPMENT and maximize the 
traffic moving capability of NC 12, Currituck County shall encourage commercial 
development to cluster at appropriate locations rather than dispersing along NC 12. 

 
 

4. The use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, including, 
but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public 
facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place or programmed to be in place 
within two years after the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of major 
subdivisions). 
 
Based on the suggested findings, staff has determined it is probably true that the use will 
not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities, including but not 
limited to schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities. 
 
Staff Findings: 
a. According to the applicant, the use is expected to have no impact on the County’s 

ability to provide adequate public facilities.  
 

PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill  
Amended Sketch Plan/Use Permit 

Page 4 of 10 

10



b. The applicant proposes minimal site development, no structures are proposed, and the 
use will have no impact on schools.   

 
III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends 
approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Any structures and/or impervious surfaces will require site plan approval, stormwater 
plan approval, and low impact development techniques shall be utilized to fully address 
environmental concerns. 

2. Any change or intensification of use requires County approval through the appropriate 
process. 

IV. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board recommended approval to amend a Sketch Plan/Use Permit with the staff 
recommendations. 

  

 
PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill  

Amended Sketch Plan/Use Permit 
Page 5 of 10 

11



PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (3.11.14)  
Mr. Bissell said the use area for the purpose of material and equipment storage and landscape 
operations is similar to previously approved sites to the North and South. No impervious coverage 
is proposed. Stormwater runoff and sedimentation will be managed using perimeter swales and 
check dams. The existing approved access way will be utilized. Mr. Bissell will be glad to answer 
any questions the board may have. 
 
Ms. Bell said the 2006 Land Use Plan classified this site as conservation within the Corolla 
subarea.  Ms. Bell said item 4 states, “With the exception of agricultural related uses, 
nonresidential uses should not be encouraged.”  Ms. Bell said this request is not an agricultural use. 
 
Mr. Bissell said it would be related to nursery operation, which would be exempt from this 
restriction. 
 
Ms. Overstreet asked if this area is subject to flooding. 
 
Mr. Bissell said it did flood during Hurricane Irene.  
 
Mr. Cooper said structures or impervious surfaces are not proposed with this request. 
 
Mr. Bissell said that is correct. 
 
Mr. Cooper said if in the future something like this is proposed it would require staff review. 
 
Mr. Bissell said that is correct. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Bell moved to approve PB 88-66 with the findings of fact and staff recommendations 
included in the case analysis.  Mr. Craddock seconded the motion.  Ayes: Mr. Bell, Mr. Cooper, 
Ms. Bell, Mr. Clark, Ms. Newbern, Mr. Cartwright and Mr. Craddock.  Nays:  Ms. Overstreet. 
 

 

 

 
PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill  

Amended Sketch Plan/Use Permit 
Page 6 of 10 

12



 
 

 
PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill  

Amended Sketch Plan/Use Permit 
Page 7 of 10 

13



 
 
 
 
 

 
PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill  

Amended Sketch Plan/Use Permit 
Page 8 of 10 

14



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Mark Bissell, James Bickford 
 
From: Planning Staff 
 
Date: January 9, 2014 
 
Re:  PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill, Amended Sketch Plan/Use Permit 
 
 
 
The following comments have been received for the January 15, 2014 TRC meeting.  In order to 
be scheduled for the February 11, 2014 Planning Board meeting, please address all comments 
and resubmit a corrected plan by 3:00 p.m. on January 21, 2014.   TRC comments are valid for 
six months from the date of the TRC meeting. 
 
Planning, Jason Litteral 
Approved with comments 

1. Please clarify if the new General Business allocation constitutes a reduction in open space 
and, if so, please indicate the reduction in the table on the amended sketch. 
 

2. The Land Use Plan classifies the proposed use area as Conservation.  Staff has concerns 
regarding compatibility with the land use plan given the proposed wetland fill and use. 
Please be prepared to discuss site design and specific uses for the property. 
 

3. Historically, the county has been fairly restrictive when approving commercial uses in 
conservation areas.  Staff would like to discuss the use of LID techniques for the site to 
minimize impacts to the adjacent wetlands.  Please be prepared to address the storage of 
heavy equipment, machinery, fuel, sand, topsoil, mulch, gravel, stones, etc.  

 
Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
See engineering comments 
 
Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 
Approved 
 
Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
Reviewed, No Comment 
 
Currituck County Emergency Management, James Mims 
Approved, 
Will need further review for any structures. 
 
 
Currituck County Local Volunteer Fire Department 
Reviewed, 
 

 
PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill  

Amended Sketch Plan/Use Permit 
Page 9 of 10 

15



Hazardous chemicals, if any, will need to be stored to code and labeled. 
 
Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 
Reviewed, No Comment 
 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 
Reviewed, No Comment 
 
Currituck County Parks and Recreation, Jason Weeks 
Reviewed,  No Comment. 
 
NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens  
Reviewed, 

• Note: This application is for a commercial rezoning and includes a Use Area Map. The 
site contains wetlands and is located just east of a water body connected to the Currituck 
Sound. The site appears to be within the 75 foot Area of Environmental Concern (AEC) 
along the water body and may include Coastal Wetlands. 

• Any land disturbance within 75 feet of the water and adjacent wetlands will require 
Division of Coastal Management (DCM) review. A permit may be required for 
improvements shown on the Use Area Map.  

•  Please contact Ron Renaldi, DCM Field Representative, at 252-264-3901 to schedule 
an on-site visit prior to any land disturbance activities. 

 
NCDENR, Land Quality, Pat MCClain 
Reviewed, No Comment 
 
NCDENR, Division of Water Resources, Anthony Scarbraugh 
Reviewed, 
 
After conducting a review of the subject proposal, this Office recommends coordinating with US 
Army Corps of Engineers on permit required for the proposed impacts to 404-wetlands. 
 
NC State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbot 
An archaeological survey is not recommended. No Comment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill  

Amended Sketch Plan/Use Permit 
Page 10 of 10 

16



James V Bickford III
James V Bickford III

James V Bickford III

12/19/2013

James V Bickford III

17

https://trust.docusign.com
https://trust.docusign.com
https://trust.docusign.com
https://trust.docusign.com
https://trust.docusign.com


James V Bickford III

12/19/2013

12/19/2013

18

https://trust.docusign.com
https://trust.docusign.com
https://trust.docusign.com
https://trust.docusign.com
https://trust.docusign.com


19



20



21



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title 
 
PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD request to amend the sketch plan and use permit to increase the commercial allocation 
within the planned unit development by 0.62 acres, Tax Map 115, Parcel 3S, Poplar Branch Township. 
 
 
Brief Description of Agenda Item 
 
Food Lion, LLC is requesting to amend the sketch plan and (special) use permit to increase the commercial allocation from 
5.48 acres to 6.10 acres on a parcel currently owned by Food Lion, LLC.   This same request was presented and approved 
by the Board of Commissioners on December 3, 2007.  Subsequently, the changes did not appear on the updated sketch 
plans prepared and submitted by other engineering firms and approved by the Board.  The parcel contains 14.1 acres and 
the remaining 8 acres will be dedicated open space. 
 
 
Planning Board Recommendation: 
 
Mr. Cooper moved to approve PB 87-56 as presented with the findings of fact and staff recommendations 
included in the case analysis.  Mr. Craddock seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously.  
 
   
 

 
Board Action Requested 
 
Action 
 
 
Person Submitting Agenda Item 
 
 
Ben Woody 
 
 
Presenter of Agenda Item 
 
 
Ben Woody 
 

22



CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 

DATE: April 7, 2014 
PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD 

 
ITEM:   PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD Amended Sketch Plan/Use Permit  to 

increase the commercial allocation within the PUD by 0.62 acres.  
 

LOCATION: Monteray Shores, Ocean Trail, Corolla, NC. 

TAX ID: 0115-000-003S-0000 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: SFO (Single Family Outer Banks) with PUD Overlay    
  
PRESENT USE: Undeveloped 
 
PROPOSED USE: Grocery Store 
 
OWNER:  Food Lion, LLC 
   2110 Executive Drive 
   Salisbury, NC  28145 
 
APPLICANT:  Food Lion, LLC 

  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Residential SFO/PUD overlay 
SOUTH Residential/Undeveloped SFO/PUD overlay 
EAST:  Undeveloped SFO/PUD overlay 
WEST: Currituck Sound N/A 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service within the 

Corolla subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 14.1 acres  
 
NUMBER OF UNITS: 654 units  
       
PROJECT DENSITY: 2.05 units per acre  
 
UTILITIES: The development will be served by Southern Outer Banks water 

system and the Monteray Shores/TimBuck II wastewater treatment 
plant.     

 
PUD ALLOCATION: 355.60 acres (approved development area) 
 363.21 acres (summation on approved plans) 
  36.32 acres proposed commercial allocation   (10%) 
 

PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD 
Amended Sketch Plan/(Special) Use Permit 

Page 1 of 10 

23



  131.13 acres proposed open space (36.10%) 
 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

• The applicant, Food Lion, LLC, is requesting an amended sketch plan and (special) use 
permit to increase the commercial allocation from 5.48 acres to 6.10 acres on the 
parcel currently owned by Food Lion, LLC.   

• The development summary (open space, commercial and residential) provides an 
update and reflects the 2007 sketch plan with plan changes approved in 2010. 

• The BOC approved the same request on December 3, 2007; however, the commercial 
allocation was not included in updated sketch plans submitted and approved after the 
2007 approval prepared by another engineering firm.   

• All remaining acreage (8 acres) of this tract not included in the General Business 
allocation will be dedicated open space.   

• A conceptual plan of a proposed food store is provided for illustrative purposes only. 
The site specific development plan is not approved for this property or part of this 
submittal.  A site plan for any proposed development on the tract must be submitted to 
the county, follow the appropriate review process for the type of use proposed, and 
be approved by the appropriate authority. 

 
II. USE PERMIT REVIEW STANDARDS: 

Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 

Use permits (UP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the UP procedure, property uses which would otherwise 
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of 
approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a UP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and staff findings of 
fact are outlined as follows: 

 
1. The use will not endanger the public health or safety. 

Based on the suggested findings provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is 
probably true that the use will not endanger the public health or safety. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed zoning request will increase the property’s commercial allocation 

from 5.40 acres to 6.10 acres (net 0.6 acres).   
b. The increased commercial allocation on the parcel will not endanger public health 

or safety.   
c. The property is located in the Corolla subarea (Full Service Area) where a broad 

range of infrastructure and service investments are publically and privately 
provided.   

d. Available infrastructure and services are adequate and support the proposed 
increase in commercial land allocation. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD 

Amended Sketch Plan/(Special) Use Permit 
Page 2 of 10 

24



2. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony with the 
area in which it is located. 

Based on the suggested findings provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is 
probably true that the use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and 
will be in harmony with the area in which it is located. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed zoning request will increase the property’s commercial allocation 

from 5.4 acres to 6.10 acres (net 0.6 acres). 
b. The property is also located within the Corolla subarea (Full Service Area) where 

commercial developments along with many other uses are supported. 
c. The property has a commercial designation (GB).  The request is to increase the 

commercial allocation of the property by approximately 11%. 
d. The proposed increase in commercial allocation will not injure the value of abutting 

properties and will be in harmony with the area in which it is located.   
 

3. The use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plans. 
Based on the suggested findings, staff has determined it is probably true that the use 
will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plans. 
Suggested Findings: 
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service within the Corolla subarea.  
The full service area may include nonresidential uses that are clustered and serve the 
immediate area, and where appropriate, a more extensive market territory.  The 
policy emphasis is for the Corolla area is to allow for predominately medium density 
residential development with minimal commercial development arranged in clusters.  
The proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan, some of which are: 
 
POLICY OB2:  So as to minimize COMMERCIAL STRIP DEVELOPMENT and maximize 
the traffic moving capability of NC 12, Currituck County shall encourage commercial 
development to cluster at appropriate locations rather than dispersing along NC 12. 
 
POLICY WQ5:  Development that preserves the NATURAL FEATURES OF THE SITE, 
including existing topography and significant existing vegetation, shall be encouraged.  
If COASTAL and NON-COASTAL WETLANDS are considered part of a lot’s acreage 
for the purpose of determining minimum lot size or development density, Low Impact 
Development techniques or appropriate buffers shall be integrated into the 
development.  Open space developments shall be encouraged to REDUCE 
IMPERVIOUS SERVICE AREAS associated with new development and redevelopment. 

 
4. The use will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities, including but 

not limited to schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public 
facilities are adequate: 

Based on the suggested findings, staff has determined it is probably true that the use 
will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities, including but 
not limited to schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.   
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed development will not have an impact on schools. 

 
PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD 

Amended Sketch Plan/(Special) Use Permit 
Page 3 of 10 

25



 
 
 
III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends 
approval subject to the following conditions: 
 
1.  A current USACOE wetland delineation shall be submitted with the proposed site plan. 

 

IV. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board recommended approval to amend the Sketch Plan/Use Permit with the 
staff recommendation. 

  
  

The application and supporting material are available at the county website: 

Board of Commissioners:  www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm 
 

  

 
PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD 

Amended Sketch Plan/(Special) Use Permit 
Page 4 of 10 

26

http://www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm


PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (3.11.14) 
Mr. Dail said staff did a good job presenting the request and would be glad to answer any 
questions the board may have. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Cooper moved to approve PB 87-56 as presented with the findings of fact and staff 
recommendations included in the case analysis.  Mr. Craddock seconded the motion and motion 
carried unanimously.  
  

 
PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD 

Amended Sketch Plan/(Special) Use Permit 
Page 5 of 10 

27



 

 
PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD 

Amended Sketch Plan/(Special) Use Permit 
Page 6 of 10 

28



 
 

  

 
PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD 

Amended Sketch Plan/(Special) Use Permit 
Page 7 of 10 

29



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Food Lion, LLC 
 Derek Dail, Quible & Associates 
 
From: Planning Staff 
 
Date: February 19, 2014 
 
Re:  Monteray Shores, PUD, Amended Sketch Plan/(Special) Use Permit 
 
 
 
The following comments have been received for the February 19, 2014 TRC meeting.  The 
amended sketch plan/(special) use permit will require recommendation from the Planning Board 
and approval from the Board of Commissioners.  Any changes to the plan/documents must be 
submitted to Donna Voliva by February 24, 2014 to remain on track for the March Planning 
Board.  TRC comments are valid for six months from the date of the TRC meeting. 
 
Planning, Donna Voliva 252-232-6032 
Approved with comments 
 

1. Please clarify the acreage discrepancies.  The actual acreage shall be indicated on the 
plan.   

2. Please provide a more detailed response to the use permit criteria provided in the 
application.  This information is used to determine findings of fact for the use permit. 

3. The UDO limits the maximum land area that can be occupied by commercial development 
at 10%.  The Board of Commissioners approved an amended sketch plan prepared by 
Quible and Associates November of 2007 which increased the commercial allocation for 
the “Food Lion” tract to 6.1 acres.  Plans prepared by other engineering firms did not 
include the 2007 Quible and Associates allocation and the commercial allocation reverted 
to 5.4 acres.  (general note) 

4. Please remove the bufferyard note #11. 
5. Stormwater note #10 may not meet the stormwater manual requirements.  Staff suggests 

removing the note or modifying the language. 
6. The conceptual site plan was provided for illustrative purposes.  The site plan must be 

reviewed for compliance with the UDO that is effective on the date of site plan submittal. 
 
Currituck County Engineer, Michelle Perry 
Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
No comment 
 
Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
Approved 
 
Currituck County Emergency Management, James Mims 252-264-6641 
Reviewed 

1. Approved for zoning changes.  Further review is required prior to construction. 

 
PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD 

Amended Sketch Plan/(Special) Use Permit 
Page 8 of 10 

30



 
Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 
Reviewed 

1. GIS will assign address(es) when a building permit is applied for.  Building elevations may 
be required at that time. 

 
NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens  
Reviewed 

1. The existing pond shown on the conceptual plan is within CAMA jurisdiction, with a 30’ 
buffer and a 75’ AEC. 

2. As proposed, improvements shown within the 30’ buffer would not be allowed.  A CAMA 
major permit will be required for land disturbance over one acre on the lot.  Please 
contact Ron Renaldi, DCM Field Representative, at 252-264-3901 to discuss the proposal. 

 
NC State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbot 
No comment 

1. No previously recorded archaeology sites noted in the project area.  An archaeology 
survey is not recommended. 

 
Albemarle Regional Health Department, Joe Hobbs 
Reviewed 

1. NEED APPROVAL LETTER FROM NC DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES (WASHINGTON 
REGIONAL OFFICE) AT 252-946-6481 TO DETERMINE WASTEWATER CAPACITY APPROVAL FOR 
THIS PROPOSED PROJECT. ALSO CONSULT WITH NC STATE PLAN REVIEW OFFICE OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AT 919-707-5863(KEVIN DODGE PE) FOR MEAT MARKET AND DELI 
DEPARTMENT INTERIOR/EXTERIOR EQUIPMENT LAYOUT APPROVAL IN ORDER TO OBTAIN 
REQUIRED PERMITS FROM CURRITUCK COUNTY HEALTH DEPT..PLEASE CONSULT WITH HEALTH 
DEPT. AT 252-232-6603.  
THANK YOU 
 

Corolla Fire and Rescue, Chief Rick Galganski  252-619-4442 
Reviewed 

1. Need to have legal fire lanes with fire hydrants that comply with code. 
 
The following departments did not provide comments: 
 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 252-232-6020 
 
The following items are necessary for resubmittal: 

• 3 - full size copies of revised plans. 
• 10- 11”x17” copies of revised plans. 
• 1- 8.5”x11” copy of all revised plans. 
• 1- PDF digital copy of all revised documents and plans. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD 
Amended Sketch Plan/(Special) Use Permit 

Page 9 of 10 

31



This page is blank 
 

 
PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD 

Amended Sketch Plan/(Special) Use Permit 
Page 10 of 10 

32



AMENDED SKETCH PLAN
MONTERAY SHORES P.U.D.

PHASE III - (COROLLA SHORES - PHASE V)

33














































34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title 
 
PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge, Phase II, Preliminary Plat/Use Permit for a 4 lot subdivision. 
 
 
Brief Description of Agenda Item 
 
This subdivision is located in Moyock, on the north side of Brumsey Road approximately ¼ mile from the intersection with 
Tulls Creek Road, Crawford Township, Tax ID: 0049-000-082A-0000.  This is proposed to be an eight lot subdivision.  Two 
lots were recorded  February 12, 2014.   
 
 
Planning Board Recommendation: 
 
Ms. Overstreet moved to approve PB 13-21 as presented with the findings of fact and staff recommendations 
included in the case analysis.  Mr. Cartwright seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously.  
 
 

 
Board Action Requested 
 
Action 
 
 
Person Submitting Agenda Item 
 
 
Ben Woody 
 
 
Presenter of Agenda Item 
 
 
Ben Woody 
 

63



CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 

DATE: April 7, 2014 
PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge, Phase II 

 
ITEM:   PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge, Phase II, Preliminary Plat/Use Permit for a 4 lot 

subdivision phase.  
 
LOCATION: In Moyock, on the north side of Brumsey Road approximately ¼ mile from 

the intersection with Tulls Creek Road, Crawford Township. 

TAX ID: 0049-000-082A-0000 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: Single Family Mainland (SFM)  
  
PRESENT USE: Undeveloped 
 
OWNER/  H. Kim Old 
APPLICANT:  104 Tulls Creek Road 
   Moyock NC  27958 
  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Wetlands SFM 
SOUTH Residential SFM 
EAST:  Residential SFM 
WEST: Residential/farmland/undeveloped SFM 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Limited Service within the 

Courthouse subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 11.5 acres 
 
NUMBER OF UNITS: 4 Residential Lots (Phase II) 
 8 Residential Lots (Phases I and II) 
       
PROJECT DENSITY: 0.70 units per acre (Phase I and Phase II) 
  
OPEN SPACE  3.45 acres required  
AREA:   3.60 acres provided 
 
UTILITIES: The individual lots will be served by county water and on-site septic 

systems.     
 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

• The final plat of Brumsey Ridge, Phase 1, Part 1, (2 lots) was recorded on February 
12, 2014. 

 
PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge 

Preliminary Plat/UP 
Page 1 of 10 

64



• Kim Old is requesting preliminary plat/use permit approval of a 4 lot (Phase II) 
residential subdivision with an overall project density of 0.70 units per acre in the SFM 
zoning district. 

 
II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 

Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
Use permits (UP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the UP procedure, property uses which would otherwise 
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of 
approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a UP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and suggested 
findings of fact are outlined as follows: 

 
1. The use will not endanger the public health or safety. 

Based on the suggested finding provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is 
probably true that the use will not endanger the public health or safety. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The use will adhere to county health and safety standards and will not endanger 

the public health or safety.  
 

2. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony with the 
area in which it is located. 

Based on the suggested findings provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is 
probably true that the use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and 
will be in harmony with the area in which it is located. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed use is a residential subdivision that is permissible in the SFM zoning 

district.   
b. There are existing residential uses to the east and west as well as across the street 

from the proposed use.   
 

3. The use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plans. 
Based on the suggested findings, staff has determined it is probably true that the use 
will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plans. 
Suggested Findings: 
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Limited Services within the Courthouse 
subarea.  The Limited Services area is to provide for primarily residential 
development at low densities.  The policy emphasis is for the Courthouse area to 
continue to grow as a small community center.  The proposed use is in keeping with the 
policies of the plan, some of which are: 
 
POLICY HN1: Currituck County shall encourage development to occur at densities 
appropriate for the location. LOCATION AND DENSITY FACTORS shall include 
whether the development is within an environmentally suitable area, the type and 
capacity of sewage treatment available to the site, the adequacy of transportation 
facilities providing access to the site, and the proximity of the site to existing and 
planned urban services.  For example, projects falling within the Full Services areas of 

 
PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge 

Preliminary Plat/UP 
Page 2 of 10 

65



the Future Land Use Map would be permitted a higher density because of the 
availability of infrastructure as well as similarity to the existing development pattern.  
Such projects could be developed at a density of two (2) or more dwelling units per 
acre.   Projects within areas designated as Limited Service would be permitted a 
density of one (1) to one and one half (1.5) units per acre depending upon the 
surrounding development pattern and availability of resources.  Projects within areas 
designated as Rural or Conservation by the Future Land Use Plan would be permitted 
a much lower density of 1 dwelling unit per 3 acres because of the lack of 
infrastructure in the area, the existing low density development pattern, and presence 
of environmentally sensitive natural areas.   
 
POLICY HN3: Currituck County shall especially encourage two forms of residential 
development, each with the objective of avoiding traditional suburban sprawl: 

1. OPEN SPACE DEVELOPMENTS that cluster homes on less land, preserving 
permanently dedicated open space and often employ on-site or community 
sewage treatment. These types of developments are likely to occur primarily in 
the Conservation, Rural, and to a certain extent the Limited Service areas 
identified on the Future Land Use Map. 

2. COMPACT, MIXED USE DEVELOPMENTS or DEVELOPMENTS NEAR A MIXTURE 
OF USES that promote a return to balanced, self-supporting community centers 
generally served by centralized water and sewer. The types of development 
are contemplated for the Full Service Areas identified on the Future Land Use 
Map. 

 
POLICY AG2: Farms and woodlands shall be recognized as an integral part of the 
county’s OPEN SPACE SYSTEM. Efforts to keep these areas viable as part of the 
area’s resource-based economic sector, shall be encouraged. 
 
POLICY ES2:  NON-COASTAL WETLANDS, including FRESHWATER SWAMPS, AND 
INLAND, NON-TIDAL WETLANDS, shall be conserved for the important role they play 
in absorbing floodwaters, filtering pollutants from stormwater runoff, recharging the 
ground water table, and providing critical habitat for many plant and animal species.  
Currituck County supports the efforts of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in protecting 
such wetlands through the Section 404 permit program of the Clean water Act, as well 
as Section 401 water quality certifications by the State of North Carolina. 
 

4. The use will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities, including but 
not limited to schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public 
facilities are adequate: 

Based on the suggested findings, staff has determined it is probably true that the use 
will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities, including but 
not limited to schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.   
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed development will have the following impact on schools: 

i. Elementary: 1 student  
ii. Middle:  0 student 
iii. High:  0 student 

 
 

PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 3 of 10 

66



III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends 
approval subject to the following condition: 
 
1. Any impacts to waters or wetlands of the US will require a permit review. 

 
 
IV. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 

The Planning Board recommended approval of the preliminary plat/use permit with the staff 
recommendations. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
THE APPLICATION AND RELATED MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE ON THE COUNTY’S WEBSITE 

 
Board of Commissioners:  www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm 

 

 
PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge 

Preliminary Plat/UP 
Page 4 of 10 

67

http://www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm


PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (3.11.14) 
Mr. Bissell said the reason this project was done in two phases there was a delay in getting the 
Health Department’s approval on some of the lots; and they had to reconfigure some of the lots.  
Mr. Bissell said he would be glad to answer any questions the board may have. 
 
Mr. Craddock said Mr. Bissell did a good job explaining the project when he presented Phase 1. 
 
ACTION 
Ms. Overstreet moved to approve PB 13-21 as presented with the findings of fact and staff 
recommendations included in the case analysis.  Mr. Cartwright seconded the motion and motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
 
 

 
PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge 

Preliminary Plat/UP 
Page 5 of 10 

68



 

 
 
 

 
 

PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 6 of 10 

69



 

 
PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge 

Preliminary Plat/UP 
Page 7 of 10 

70



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  H. Kim Old 
 Bissell Professional Group 
 
From: Planning Staff 
 
Date: January 9, 2014 
 
Re:  Brumsey Ridge 
 
 
 
The following comments have been received for the January 15, 2014 TRC meeting.  TRC 
comments are valid for six months from the date of the TRC meeting. 
 
Planning, Donna Voliva 252-232-6032 
Brumsey Ridge, Phase II, Preliminary Plat 

1. Provide a soils map. 
2. Lots 3-6 were evaluated by ARHS and determined unsuitable.   A letter from ARHS must 

be provided that indicates the lots are either provisionally suitable or suitable with 
required fill. 

3. Please clarify the minimum building pad and first floor elevations.  The required elevations 
shall be consistent with the stormwater manual (10 year storm).   

4. Please clarify the need for note #10. 
5. The plat indicates required buffer plantings and open space reforestation calculations.  

The calculations will need to be revised to reflect the UDO requirements.   
6. The tax value of the property indicates the per acre value is $31,791.30 which will 

require a modification of the payment in lieu of dedication. 
 

Currituck County Engineer, Michelle Perry, Eric Weatherly 
Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
Approved 

1. Provide as-builts for stormwater improvements at Phase 2 final plat. 
 
Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
Approved 

1. Submit the items from the project completion document for Phase 1, Part 1. 
 
Currituck County Emergency Management, James Mims 252-264-6641 
Approved 

 
Currituck County Inspections, Spence Castello 
No comment 
 
Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 
Reviewed 
 

 
PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge 

Preliminary Plat/UP 
Page 8 of 10 

71



Currituck County Parks and Recreation, Jason Weeks 252-232-3007 
No comment 
 
NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens  
No comment 
 
NCDENR, Land Quality Section, Pat McClain  
Reviewed 

1. An erosion and sedimentation control plan must be approved by the office prior to any 
land disturbance on the tract (11.2 acre or less lot 1) or the beginning of construction on 
the installation of any utility.  The erosion and sedimentation plan must address individual 
lot development.  A coastal stormwater permit will also be required prior to installation of 
impervious cover, pavement, buildings, etc. 

 
NC State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbot 
No comment 
 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 252-232-6020 
No comment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 9 of 10 

72



 
 

This page left blank 

 
PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge 

Preliminary Plat/UP 
Page 10 of 10 

73



74



75



76



77



78



79



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title 
 
PB 14-02 Shore Shot Pawn and Gun 
 
 
Brief Description of Agenda Item 
 
Use permit request to operate a pawn shop in Grandy at 6599 Caratoke Highway, PIN 0108-000-0009-0000. 
 
 
Planning Board Recommendation: 
 
Ms. Bell moved to approved PB 14-02 as presented with the findings of fact and staff recommendations included 
in the case analysis.  Mr. Craddock seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously.  
 
 

 
Board Action Requested 
 
Action 
 
 
Person Submitting Agenda Item 
 
 
Ben Woody 
 
 
Presenter of Agenda Item 
 
 
Ben Woody 
 

80



CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 

DATE: April 7, 2014 
PB 14-02 Shore Shot Pawn & Gun 

 
ITEM:   PB 14-02 Shore Shot Pawn and Gun request for a use permit to operate a 

pawn shop.  
 

LOCATION: Grandy:  6599 Caratoke Highway  

TAX ID: 0108000-0009-0000 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: General Business (GB) 
  
PRESENT USE: Retail/Service (Machine Shop and Quilting Shop) 
 
OWNER:  Cynthia Holland 
   101 Mallard Dr 
   Currituck NC  27929 
 
APPLICANT:  Rebecca January 
   PO Box 266 
   Nags Head NC  27959 

  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Residential GB 
SOUTH Residential GB 
EAST:  Residential AG 
WEST: Retail GB 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service within the 

Grandy subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 1.18 acres  
 
COMMUNITY MEETING: A community meeting was held on January 21, 2014 at the Currituck 

Bible Baptist Church.  No residents attended the meeting.    
 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

1. The applicant is requesting to operate a pawn shop in an existing building. 
2. The applicant is proposing infrequent display of goods (i.e. bikes) outside of the building.  

Outdoor display is allowed as an accessory use to the business and must meet all of the 
requirements of Section 4.3.3.P Outdoor Display and Sales of the UDO. 

3. The applicant will be using 1,000 sf of the building for the pawn shop and the remaining 
3,600 sf as storage. 
 

 
PB 14-01 Shore Shot Pawn & Gun 

Use Permit 
Page 1 of 10 

81



II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 
Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
Use permits (UP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the UP procedure, property uses which would otherwise 
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of 
approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a UP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and suggested 
findings of fact are outlined as follows: 

 
1. The use will not endanger the public health or safety. 

Based on the suggested finding provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is 
probably true that the use will not endanger the public health or safety. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The use will keep detailed records and will be available to the sheriff’s office on a 

daily basis.  
 

2. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony with the 
area in which it is located. 

Based on the suggested findings provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is 
probably true that the use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and 
will be in harmony with the area in which it is located. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. According to the applicant, the area is zoned GB and there are several other 

businesses clustered together in the general vicinity of the shop. 
b. The proposed use will be within an existing building.   
c. There are existing retail uses across the street from the proposed use.   
 

3. The use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plans. 
Based on the suggested findings, staff has determined it is probably true that the use 
will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plans. 
Suggested Findings: 
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Services within the Grandy subarea.  
The Full Service area is to preserve existing community character.  The policy emphasis 
is for the Grandy area to further evolve as a community center.  The proposed use is 
in keeping with the policies of the plan, some of which are: 
a. POLICY CD5:  Incompatible or poorly planned commercial encroachment within or 

immediately adjoining existing residential areas shall be prohibited.  Such 
incompatible encroachments often include, but are not limited to, large-scale 
commercial uses or automobile-oriented commercial uses such as service stations, 
car lots, car washes, drive through restaurants, and the like. 

b. POLICY ED1:  New and expanding industries and businesses should be especially 
encouraged that: 1) diversify the local economy, 2) train and utilize a more highly 
skilled labor force, and 3) are compatible with the environmental quality and 
natural amenity-based economy of Currituck County. 

c. POLICY ED4:  In addition to the recruitment and expansion of major new industries, 
the considerable value of small business start-ups, expansions, and spin-offs shall 
also be recognized. 
 

 
PB 14-01 Shore Shot Pawn & Gun 

Use Permit 
Page 2 of 10 

82



 
 

4. The use will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities, including but 
not limited to schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public 
facilities are adequate: 

Based on the suggested findings, staff has determined it is probably true that the use 
will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities, including but 
not limited to schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.   
Suggested Findings: 
a. According to the applicant, the use will not create any undue burden on public 

facilities and there will be no site improvements made. 
b. The proposed development will have no impacts on schools. 

 
 
III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends 
approval of the use permit subject to the findings of fact and the following conditions: 
 
1. The square footage used by the pawn shop shall not exceed 1,000 sf under this approval. 
2. Do not park, drive, or store merchandise on septic system area and private well area. 

 
IV. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 

The Planning Board recommended approval of PB 14-02 of the use permit with staff 
recommendations. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
THE APPLICATION AND RELATED MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE ON THE COUNTY’S WEBSITE:   
 
Board of Commissioners:  www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm 

 
PB 14-01 Shore Shot Pawn & Gun 

Use Permit 
Page 3 of 10 

83

http://www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm


PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (3-11-14) 

Mr. Cooper asked if the 1,000 sf was sectioned off in the building. 
 
Ms. Glave said yes. 
 
Mr. Cooper asked if the daily record is kept in case something is stolen. 
 
Ms. Glave said General Status is very aggressive with pawn shops keeping detailed records, 
which will be provided to the sheriff’s office on a daily basis. 
 
Ms. January said it took a long time to find a building that would accommodate this type of 
business and a good location for it. Ms. January would be glad to answer any questions. 
 
Mr. Craddock said he does not feel this request would be a detriment to Grandy or the highway 
corridor if this request was allowed. 
 
ACTION 
Ms. Bell moved to approved PB 14-02 as presented with the findings of fact and staff 
recommendations included in the case analysis.  Mr. Craddock seconded the motion and motion 
carried unanimously.  

 
PB 14-01 Shore Shot Pawn & Gun 

Use Permit 
Page 4 of 10 

84



 

 
 

 
PB 14-01 Shore Shot Pawn & Gun 

Use Permit 
Page 5 of 10 

85



 

 
PB 14-01 Shore Shot Pawn & Gun 

Use Permit 
Page 6 of 10 

86



  

 
PB 14-01 Shore Shot Pawn & Gun 

Use Permit 
Page 7 of 10 

87



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Rebecca January, Applicant 
 Cynthia Holland, Owner 
 
From: Tammy Glave, Planner II 
 
Date: February 12, 2013 
 
Re:  Shore Shot Pawn & Gun – Use Permit 
 
 
The following comments have been received for the February 19, 2014 Technical Review 
Committee meeting.  Your request will be scheduled for the March 11, 2014 Planning Board 
meeting.  TRC comments are valid for six months from the date of the TRC meeting. 
 
Planning, (Tammy Glave, 252-232-6025) 
Approved with comments: 

1. The square footage used by the pawn shop cannot exceed 1,000 sf. 
2. Will there be any outdoor storage or display of materials? 

 
Currituck County Engineer (Eric Weatherly/Michelle Perry,  252-232-6035/Currituck Soil and 
Water (Mike Doxey, 252-232-3360) 
Approved without comment. 
 
Currituck County Fire and Emergency Management (James Mims, 252-232-6641) 
Reviewed without comment. 
 
Currituck County GIS (Harry Lee,  252-232-4039) 
Reviewed without comment. 
 
Currituck County Utilities (Pat Irwin,  252-232-6061)  
Approved without comment. 
 
Albemarle Regional Health Services (Joe Hobbs, 252-232-6603) 
Approved with comment: 

1. Do not park, drive, store merchandise on septic system area and private well area. 
 
NC Division of Coastal Management (Charlan Owens, 252-264-3901) 
Reviewed without comment. 
 
NC State Archeology (Lawrence Abbott, 919-807-6554) 
Reviewed with comment: 

1. Permit is for the use of an existing structure for a new business. An archaeological survey is 
not recommended. 

 
 
Comments not received from the following: 
Currituck County Building Inspections (Spence Castello, 252-232-6020) 
 

PB 14-01 Shore Shot Pawn & Gun 
Use Permit 

Page 8 of 10 

88



  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PB 14-01 Shore Shot Pawn & Gun 

Use Permit 
Page 9 of 10 

89



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
PB 14-01 Shore Shot Pawn & Gun 

Use Permit 
Page 10 of 10 

90



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title 
 
Moyock Small Area Plan 
 
 
Brief Description of Agenda Item 
 
The Moyock Small Area Plan (SAP) examines unique issues, concerns, and hopes of the community and 
works to establish public policy that accomplish the vision cast in this plan.  The SAP includes policies that 
will address growth management, sense of place and quality of life, and economic development.  Upon 
adoption, the plan is used to assist staff and the Board of Commissioners in guiding growth as well as 
planning for future county improvements to infrastructure and services.   
 
The Board of Commissioners requested that staff initiate a planning process to engage the community 
and address growth and development in a comprehensive manner.  An in depth public process was 
undertaken to develop the vision, policies, and actions in this plan.  Residents and property owners of 
Moyock and the Stakeholder Committee attended meetings over the course of 18 months to define what 
matters to them- why they live in Moyock, what they like about Moyock, what is important to preserve 
as Moyock continues to grow, and what their vision for Moyock is in next 10 years.  In addition to public 
input from the community, extensive input with all county departments was undertaken. This plan is the 
culmination of this process and reflects the vision for the future of Moyock that will serve as a guide to 
help balance future growth.   
 
 
Planning Board Recommendation: 
The Planning Board recommendated unanimous approval at their March 11, 2014 meeting.       
 
 

 
Board Action Requested 
 
Action 
 
 
Person Submitting Agenda Item 
 
 
Holly B. White 
 
 
Presenter of Agenda Item 
 
 
Moyock SAP Stakeholder Committee and Holly White 
 

91



Moyock
Small Area Plan

Department of Planning and
Community Development 
Currituck County, North Carolina

92



93



Stakeholder Committee

Sarah Alford
Carol Bell, Planning Board Liason
Doris Flora
Mike Hall, Vice Chairman
Bruce Harding
Brian Innes
Eldon Miller III
Charles Morris
Vic Ramsey
Marsha Stonecypher
Janet Taylor
Rose Thompson
Dorothee White
Fred Whiteman, Chairman
Valarie Williams

Currituck County Staff

Technical Advisory Group
Peter Bishop, Director of Economic Development
Mike Doxey, Soil & Water Conservation Technician
Robert Glover, Chief, Currituck County Fire-EMS
Michelle Perry, Engineering Technician
Eric Weatherly, County Engineer
Jason Weeks, Director of Parks & Recreation

County Project Staff
Tammy Glave, Planner II
Harry Lee, GIS Coordinator
Brad Schuler, Planner I
Holly White, Senior Planner
Ben Woody, Director of Planning

Community Partners

Josh Bass, President, Chamber of Commerce
Chip Melton, Fire Chief, Moyock VFD

Acknowledgments

i94



INTRODUCTION  1          

PLAN & PROCESS  3       
 Stakeholder Committee
 Plan Development & Community Input
 Vision, Policies and Actions
 Values
 How to Use the Plan
 Updating the Plan

VISION  9

POLICY FOCUS AREAS  11          
 Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure & Services
  Future Land Use Map
 Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage:  Where we came from
  Community Character:  Where we are going
 Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business & Industry
  Tourism

FUTURE LAND USE  29

COMMUNITY TRANSECT 34      

GLOSSARY  35

APPENDIX  37

Table of Contents

ii 95



96



Moyock is the most northern community in Currituck County and is located at the North Carolina 
and Virginia State line.  It serves as the “Gateway” to the county, state, and beaches along the coast.  
Moyock is rural by nature experiencing steady growth for the last fifty years.  In the last decade, 
Moyock has become the fastest growing township in Currituck County growing by approximately 
122% since 1990.  

Moyock has experienced growth pressures from the Hampton Roads metropolitan area.  Moyock is 
a destination for people seeking a more rural living experience.  It is also an attractive place to live 
due to low property taxes, proximity to a major metropolitan area, and North Carolina’s tax relief 
for veterans.  As a result, Moyock is experiencing the side effects of growth such as increased traffic 
and flooding.  While still mostly rural, Moyock is beginning to take on the characteristics of a small 
town.   The challenge for residents in Moyock is to honor the past while embracing the future. 

The Board of Commissioners recognizes the uniqueness of Moyock and as a result requested that 
growth and development be addressed in a comprehensive manner.  An in depth public process 
was undertaken to develop the vision, policies, and actions in this plan.  Residents and property 
owners of Moyock and the Stakeholder Committee attended meetings over the course of 18 months 
to define what matters to them- why they live in Moyock, what they like about Moyock, what is 
important to preserve as Moyock continues to grow, and what their vision for Moyock is in next 10 
years.  In addition to public input from the community, extensive input with all county departments 
was undertaken. This plan is the culmination of this process and reflects the vision for the future of 
Moyock that will serve as a guide to help balance future growth.

This Small Area Plan (SAP) examines unique issues, concerns, and hopes of the community and 
works to establish public policy that work to accomplish the vision cast in this plan.  The SAP includes 
policies that will address growth management, sense of place and quality of life, and economic 
development.  Upon adoption, the plan is used to assist staff and the Board of Commissioners in 
guiding growth as well as planning for future county improvements to infrastructure and services.

Introduction

10 Fastest Growing
N.C. Counties

2000-2010 (By percentage)

1. Union ............................... 62.8%
2. Brunswick ........................ 46.8%
3. Camden ........................... 45.0%
4. Wake ............................... 43.5%
5. Hoke ................................ 39.5%
6. Johnston .......................... 38.5%
7. Cabarrus .......................... 35.8%
8. Mecklenburg ................... 32.2%
9. Iredell .............................. 30.0%
10. Currituck ....................... 29.4% 

1

Source:  U.S. Census Bureau

97



Township 2000 Population 2010 Population Actual 
Change

Percent 
Change

Moyock 4,647 6,879 2,232 48%
Crawford 5,662 7,208 1,546 27%
Poplar Branch 6,338 7,823 1,485 23%
Fruitville 1,543 1,637 94 6%

COUNTY 18,190 23,547 5,357 29.4%

2

Population Comparison By Township 

2010

Source:  U.S. Census Bureau

98



Stakeholder Committee

The Board of Commissioners appointed a 15 member Stakeholder Committee in January 2013 
to serve as a guide and sounding board for county staff during the planning process.  These 
citizen representatives embody the ideas, backgrounds, and interests of the greater majority 
of the community.  The Stakeholder Committee championed the process and plan by talking to 
neighbors and asking for their opinions.  Since the first meeting in January 2013, there have been 
14 committee meetings.  Through monthly meetings, the committee provided staff with feedback 
on issues important to the community.   The committee was instrumental in the creation of this 
plan and their input is largely the basis for the vision, policies, and actions of this plan. 

Stakeholder Committee
 
Plan Development & Community 
Input

Vision, Policies and Actions

Values

How to Use the Plan
  County Staff
  Board of Commissioners
  Appointed Boards and Committees

Updating the Plan

Plan & Process

3 99



Plan Development and Community Input

The Moyock SAP process was initiated in the Fall of 2012 after the BOC directed staff to 
comprehensively examine growth and development issues.  Staff began existing conditions research 
in the Fall of 2012 and the plan was developed under the following schedule: 

Date Event
Summer 2012 BOC Initiation
September 2012 Plan Kick-Off:  Community Meeting
Ongoing Existing Conditions Data Collection and Mapping
December 2012 Community Meeting
January 2013 Stakeholder Committee formed
February 2013 Stakeholder Kick-Off Meeting
March 2013 - February 2014 Stakeholder Committee Meetings 

(14 meetings)
June 2013 Community Meeting
February 2014 Community Meeting
March - April 2014 Public Hearings and Plan Adoption

Stakeholder Committee
 
Plan Development & Community 
Input

Vision, Policies and Actions

Values

How to Use the Plan
  County Staff
  Board of Commissioners
  Appointed Boards and Committees

Updating the Plan

4100



Through the year and half long process, the stakeholder committee and citizens were guided 
through a public input process giving them opportunities to discuss:

• What is your vision of Moyock in 10 years? What do you hope Moyock will look like in 10 
years?  What type of atmosphere, businesses, and services do you hope will be available?

• What is important to you in Moyock. Why did you move here?
• What do you hope will be different in the future?

There was extensive public input throughout this planning process with 4 community meetings and 
14 Stakeholder Committee meetings.  Stakeholder Committee meetings were public meetings open 
to the community that were subject to public meeting law.  The public was given an opportunity to 
speak at the end of each meeting and often times engage in each meeting.

The major concerns heard consistently throughout the public input process were:

• Need for additional recreational opportunities
• Preservation of rural atmosphere
• Improved stormwater management/drainage
• Proactive planning that balances growth and development
• Low taxes
• Interconnectivity of streets
• Greater variety and availability of entertainment, retail, and restaurant offerings

Stakeholder Committee
 
Plan Development & Community 
Input

Vision, Policies and Actions

Values

How to Use the Plan
  County Staff
  Board of Commissioners
  Appointed Boards and Committees

Updating the Plan

Plan & Process

5 101



Vision, Policies and Actions

The plan contains a vision, policies, and actions. This plan is the official vision and policy direction 
for Moyock in the next 10 years.

The Vision Statement describes the future conditions of Moyock as the community hopes 
to see it in the future.  It is a big picture and the foundation for the policies and actions.  The 
policies and actions work to accomplish the vision.

Policy Statements are broad, officially adopted positions of the county used by the staff, Board 
of Commissioners, and other appointed boards to review plans, make recommendations, 
determine consistency with the community’s vision, and plan future Capital Improvement 
Projects and services.  Policy statements work to implement the vision.    

Actions are the work plan of items or measurable outcomes that will be achieved in a specific 
timeframe in order to accomplish the policy and vision.  Unlike a vision or policy, once an action 
is complete it goes away.  Actions work to accomplish policy statements.

Stakeholder Committee
 
Plan Development & Community 
Input

Vision, Policies and Actions

Values

How to Use the Plan
  County Staff
  Board of Commissioners
  Appointed Boards and Committees

Updating the Plan

Walkability 

Rural Atmosphere

Fiscal Responsibility
Values

The values identified during the visioning process as being important to the community tie the 
vision, policies, and actions together throughout the plan.  

• Rural atmosphere- sights, sounds, smells, and overall feel of a rural community
• Low taxes, fiscal responsibility, and availability of adequate county services
• Human scale development that supports walkability

Placement of a symbol next to a policy or action indicates that the policy or action is accomplishing 
a value that the community holds in high regard.    

6102



How to Use the Plan

This plan will supplement the Land Use Plan to more specifically address the needs and issues of 
the study area over the next 10 years.  The policies and guidance given in this plan are consistent 
with the Land Use Plan and other county policies and documents.  This plan will establish a new 
focus for growth and development. 

The Board of Commissioners and staff will use the SAP to make recommendations about 
development proposals and other county land use policy decisions.  This plan is a vital tool for staff 
in day to day decision making and in assisting the public with development proposals.    

Updating the Plan

Each year, a working group should meet to assess the completion of actions listed in the plan.  The 
working group should be comprised of the responsible parties assigned to each action.  After meeting 
with the working group, an annual report will be prepared by Planning staff and presented to the 
Board of Commissioners outlining the status of the action plan.  Additionally, the plan should be 
evaluated and updated every three years, if necessary.    

The Small Area Plan promotes thoughtful, responsible growth.  The success of this plan largely 
depends on the continued cooperation and coordination between county agencies and an engaged 
citizenry.  A united partnership between the citizenry and the county will result in the realization of 
the policies and goals outlined in this plan. 

Stakeholder Committee
 
Plan Development & Community 
Input

Vision, Policies and Actions

Values

How to Use the Plan
  County Staff
  Board of Commissioners
  Appointed Boards and Committees

Updating the Plan

Plan & Process

7 103



8104



Moyock is a forward-looking community that 
understands and values life’s simple treasures. Continued 
growth and development in Moyock are inevitable due 
to its location to a major metropolitan area, its high 
quality of life, and low taxes.  The Moyock community 
and Currituck County are committed to protecting the 
unique rural qualities and enhancing the community in 
a way that makes Moyock a more special place to live, 
work, and play.

Moyock aspires to be a community that balances growth 
and development in a way that enhances a small town, 
main street feel at its core while sustaining a rural 
atmosphere along its perimeter.  As the community 
matures, it seeks to capitalize on its strategic location to 
diversify the economy.  It is the desire of the community 
to grow with an emphasis on a small town feel that 
invites people to build close-knit relationships. 

Vision

9 105



The community strives to accomplish this vision by:
 

• Meeting the infrastructure and service needs of the community to focus growth and public 
investment; 

• Ensuring that stormwater runoff, soil erosion, and sedimentation are properly managed to 
reduce flooding and pollution;

• Encouraging and supporting design and development of an interconnected, multi-modal, 
transportation network that safely supports pedestrians, bicyclists, rail, and vehicles;

• Expanding and developing recreational opportunities for all age and user groups including 
opportunities that increase access to the water, natural environment, walking trails, multi-
purpose fields, multi-purpose community building, and other non traditional types of 
recreational opportunities; 

• Encouraging and fostering development that is compatible with rural atmosphere, transitional 
areas, and a small town, main street feel, designed to enhance community appearance and 
promote a human scale;

• Supporting local entrepreneurs that establish community serving businesses that diversify 
the local economy, are in close proximity to residential areas, and promote community 
interaction;

• Promoting economic growth proportionate to population growth in order to ensure growth 
of the local tax base; and,

• Encouraging development of Moyock as a destination within the region.

As Moyock continues to grow, the community values:

• Rural atmosphere - sights, sounds, smells, and overall feel of a rural community;
• Low taxes, fiscal responsibility, and availability of adequate county services; and,
• Human scale development that supports walkability.

It is acknowledged that in order to secure this future everyone must work together, treating all with 
respect and fairness, focusing on common goals. 

10106



The study area encompasses 36,775 acres and remains largely undeveloped. Approximately 81% 
of the study area is forested or in cultivation. Residential development makes up the next largest 
use of land at 10%.  Industrial development only occupies 3% of the total land area and commercial 
development occupies less than 1% of the total study area. The remaining area is undeveloped 
residential, residential open space, and institutional uses (public and private).  

The majority of residential development is scattered along Highway 168. One large concentration 
occurs at the heart of Moyock between the intersections of Highway 168 and Puddin Ridge Road 
between Moyock Landing Drive and Swayertown Road. Subdivisions in this area include Shingle 
Landing, Creekside Estates, Cypress Landing, Moyock Meadows, and Quail Run. The other large 
concentration of residential density occurs in Eagle Creek Subdivision and Ranchland. This area is 
detached and just south from the heart of Moyock.       

Residents of Moyock have a median age of 38 and median household income of $63,000. Median 
age in Currituck County is 41 while that of North Carolina is 37. Median income for Currituck County 
is $57,588 and North Carolina is $46,291. The majority of residents in Moyock are employed in the 
educational services and health care industry. In addition, approximate 71.9% of Moyock residents 
commute out of state to their jobs.  This is consistent with the county wide trend of 41.6% of 
residents commuting out of state.  

Feedback during the public input process revealed that rural atmosphere was consistently 
important to the community.  There will undoubtly be growth pressures that will prove challenging 
due to the high volume of undeveloped acreage and close proximity to the Hampton Roads Area.

However, further exploration with the Stakeholder Committee also showed that a small town, main 
street feel, availability of public and private services, and economic development were central to 
where they hoped Moyock would be in 10 years.

Growth Management
Transportation
Infrastructure and Services
Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
Recreation
Heritage
Community Character

Economic Development & Business
Small Town, Main Street
Business and Industry
Tourism

Quick Facts
• Median age - 38
• Median income - $63,000
• 71.9% of residents commute out
   of state
• Largest employment sector - 
   Educational services
   Health care industry

Focus Areas

Policy Focus Areas

11 107



12

Land Use Acres % of Total
Undeveloped 16,501 44%
Agricultural/
Cultivated 14,478 39%
Residential 3,959 10%
Industrial 1,192 4%
Institutional 284 Less than 1%
Commercial 190 Less than 1%
Other 171 Less than 1%

Total 36,775 100%

Existing Land Uses 

108



Policy Focus Areas

13

2010 Population Density

Historical Development Patterns 

109



Growth Management

The Growth Management Focus Area encompasses policies and actions that address Transportation, 
Infrastructure and Services, and Future Land Use.  

Highway 168 forms the north-south backbone of the transportation network in Moyock.  Tulls 
Creek Road, South Mills Road, Northwest Backwoods Road, and Guinea Road make up the major 
network of connector streets. Tulls Creek Road runs north-south parallel to Highway 168 and 
allows local traffic to continue to move freely during the summer season when traffic is backed up 
from Moyock to Currituck.  South Mills Road provides a direct connection from Moyock to Camden 
County and Highway 17.

During the public input process participants expressed concern about transportation related issues.  
Seasonal traffic, associated with beach rental home turn over days, is a major issue in the study 
area from May through September. Traffic often backs up and at times comes to a standstill as 
vacationers arrive and leave on Saturday creating difficult 
turning movements and heavy congestion along Highway 
168.  In addition, building a network of interconnected 
streets for east-west and north-south movement was 
important along with safer facilities for moving bicycles 
and pedestrians.     

The North Carolina Department of Transportation 
(NCDOT) outlined several important projects in its 2012 
Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP). This plan is a 
long range multi-modal transportation plan. The time 
horizon for the proposed project completions is 2035 
and well beyond the time horizon of this SAP.  One of the 
larger, notable projects is a proposed four-lane freeway 
that would bypass Moyock from NC 168 near Virginia 
to US 158, with interchanges at NC 168, South Mills 
Road (SR 1227/1218), NC 34, and US 158. The TIP also 
recommends several sidewalk improvements in Moyock 
along portions of Hwy 168, Puddin Ridge Road, Tulls 
Creek Road, Sawyertown, and Survey Road.

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

14

Existing Transportation System

110



In addition to the NCDOT TIP, a regional bike plan was funded by NCDOT and developed through 
the Albemarle Rural Planning Organization (ARPO). The Albemarle Regional Bike Plan covers a 
10 county region of northeastern North Carolina. The purpose of this plan is to provide a clear 
framework for the development of new facilities, programs, and policies that will support safe and 
efficient bicycling throughout the region. This plan also recommends several projects including 
multi use path and paved shoulders in Moyock.  

Currituck County has both water and sewer infrastructure in Moyock.  County water has been 
available in Moyock since 1989. The county acquired a small package plant behind Moyock 
Commons in 2003 with a capacity of 40,000 gallons per day. This plant was taken off line for use 
when the county completed construction of new sewer plant in 2012. The new plant became 
operational in January of 2013 with a capacity of 100,000 gallons per day and the ability to be 
expanded to 600,000 gallons per day. Both Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) services are 
available through a volunteer service to residents. There is an elementary and middle school in 
Moyock.  

Improvement in stormwater management was another issue 
identified during the community engagement process. Although 
Moyock has some of the highest elevations in the county, the 
area contains very poor draining soils. The western portion of the 
study area contains remnant fragments of the Dismal Swamp that 
have been drained and either are developed or in agriculture. 
Localized flooding is a common problem. Three of the five 
stormwater districts within the county are in the Moyock study 
area. Residents in the districts pay a stormwater tax to the county 
and the county maintains the ditches and manages stormwater 
improvements within the district. The Stakeholder Committee 
recommended exploring a consolidated stormwater district for 
the entire study area that would enable the county to better and 
more comprehensively manage stormwater in Moyock.  However, 
a feasibility study is needed to identify areas of improvements, cost 
estimates for improvements, ongoing maintenance, and potential 
implementable funding options. The feasibility study should also 
include public input and involvement to determine the best way to 
meet the needs of the community.

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

Policy Focus Areas

15

Existing County Infrastructure

111



Transportation

Policy TR 1  Design future transportation improvements that are consistent with Complete Streets 
Policy.  Complete Streets Policy encourages design of transportation networks and facilities that 
safely accommodate pedestrians, bicyclists, rail, and vehicles.

Action TR 1A:  Coordinate with NCDOT to develop typical street cross sections accepted into the 
state system for maintenance.  Typical cross sections should include:  travel lanes, separated 
side paths, landscaping features, utilities, lighting, pedestrian crossings, medians, way finding 
and safety signage, signalization, and rail crossings.  

Action TR 1B: Develop typical cross sections for private streets that include Complete Street 
design features but are not intended for dedication to NCDOT.    

Action TR 1C:  Amend the UDO to incorporate standards and typical cross sections consistent 
with Complete Street policies.  

Action TR 1D:  Coordinate with NCDOT to request installation of pedestrian traffic signal 
controllers at existing stop lights and other pedestrian safety measures as sidepaths are 
constructed.

Action TR 1E:  Identify pedestrian and cyclists improvements including but not limited to 
wayfinding and safety signage, traffic calming measures, bike racks, benches, side paths, and 
pedestrian plazas/rest points that can be incorporated into the county’s Capital Improvement 
Plan (CIP).

Policy TR 2  Ensure that all development is designed with an interconnected, multi-modal 
transportation network between neighborhoods, activity centers, and other destinations to 
improve mobility and emergency access.  Development of an interconnected road network east 
and west of Highway 168 that allows north-south movement for local residential traffic is strongly 
encouraged.

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

16112



Infrastructure & Services

Policy IS 1  The costs of infrastructure, facilities, and services related to new growth and development 
should be borne primarily by those creating the demand.

Policy IS 2  Meet the infrastructure and service needs of the community at appropriate levels as the 
community continues to focus growth and public investment in areas identified as activity centers.

Action IS 2A:  Develop regulations or incentives for water and sewer upgrades or extensions 
that direct growth, lessen the burden on existing infrastructure capacity, and promote fiscally 
responsible development patterns.  

Action IS 2B:  Identify levels of service to determine the capacity of public safety services to 
protect the health, safety, and welfare of the community.    

Action IS 2C:  Create incentives for residential and commercial sprinkler systems that lessen 
demand for services and allow for more flexible development patterns.

Policy IS 3  Recognize that water and sewer services have significant influence on growth and 
require that consideration be given to the placement of proposed utilities in perspective to desired 
growth patterns.

Action IS 3A:  Establish a water and sewer connection and extension policy for Moyock that limits 
public investment and directs growth away from areas designated as rural and conservation on 
the future land use map.  

Action IS 3B:  Develop construction standards for water and sewer infrastructure to ensure that 
development is constructed in way that promotes uniformity and anticipates future growth of 
the systems. This includes incorporation of fire suppression needs such as adequate volume 
and pressure.

Policy IS 4  Ensure that stormwater runoff, soil erosion, and sedimentation is properly managed to 
reduce nuisance flooding and pollution of sensitive environmental areas

Action IS 4A:  Explore the feasibility of establishing a stormwater drainage district.  The feasibility 
study should include an analysis of existing conditions, identify areas needing improvements, 
cost estimates for improvements, and on-going maintenance and recommend implementable 
funding options.

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

Policy Focus Areas

17 113



Policy IS 5  Encourage retrofitting of NCDOT drainage infrastructure to manage nuisance flooding.

Action IS 5A:  Coordinate with NCDOT to develop a plan of action for addressing the following 
drainage issues:  
 •  Ranchland subdivision street flooding
 •  Moyock Commons/Currituck Commercial (culvert under Hwy 168 in Moyock    
           Service District {MSD}) - Ditch #1
 •  Area between the Post Office and Taylors Do-It Center - Ditch #3 (MSD)
 •  Culvert under Puddin Ridge Road - Ditch #4 (MSD)

Policy IS 6  Encourage development of shared (co-located) county facilities for public safety, senior 
services, recreation, and other community facility services.

Action IS 6A:  Develop locational and operational criteria for purchase or dedication of 
land for future shared (co-located) facilities. This might include minimum acreage, utility 
needs, avoidance of hazard areas, land use patterns (FLU Map), and proximity to major road 
connections.

Policy IS 7  Encourage and actively engage in advanced planning for the location of new public 
schools. School locations should serve to reinforce desirable growth patterns and should be viewed 
as cornerstones of the community.

Policy IS 8  Provide adequate maintenance for existing community facilities/properties and plan for 
the future management operations/staffing appropriate for the needs as land is acquired or sites 
are developed.

Action IS 8A:  Conduct a study for typical staffing needs, on-going maintenance costs, and any 
needed facility renovations for community facilities and properties that can be incorporated 
into the county’s Capital Improvement Plan.

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

18114



Future Land Use Map

Policy FLU 1  Promote compatibility between new development and existing development to avoid 
adverse impacts to the existing community.  This is achieved through design and includes larger 
setbacks, landscaped or forested strips, transition zones, fencing, screening, density and/or bulk 
step downs, or other architectural and site planning measures that encourage harmony.

Action FLU 1A:  Convene meetings with community stakeholders to define sensitive transitional 
areas where higher, denser development may abut lower density areas and better define 
compatibility solutions for these areas.

Action FLU 2A:  Explore establishment of a Community Center district, and associated sub-
districts, that will implement the vision and policies of the plan by creating development 
standards specific to Moyock study area.

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

Policy Focus Areas

19 115



Sense of Place & Quality of Life

Existing recreational opportunities in Moyock are limited to programming offered by the Parks and 
Recreation Department, fields and facilities at the elementary and middle school, an extended 
shoulder utilized by pedestrians and cyclists along Highway 168, a public boat ramp and parking 
area, and a paddle trail along Shingle Landing Creek, Northwest River, and Tulls Bay (designated 
as a NC Paddle Trail). The Parks and Recreation Department utilizes the fields and facilities at the 
elementary and middle school for its various programming including, baseball, softball, t-ball, 
soccer, football, and basketball.

During the community engagement process, citizens expressed a strong desire for increased 
recreational opportunities in Moyock. They were specifically interested in a community facility, 
walking trails, and better access to the water. For citizens who attended input opportunities, greater 
access to recreational opportunities was more important than rural atmosphere.  

In 2011, the Parks and Recreation Department completed a Parks and Recreation Master Plan for the 
county.  The Parks and Recreation Masterplan lays out a road map for development of the county’s 
park system. After extensive public input, the plan identified a need in Moyock and recommended 
a community facility and park that is programmed as a Capital Improvement Project.

An important factor in increased quality of life is access to the abundant natural resources in the 
study area. Moyock has extensive rural vistas visible from all the major roads. With over 80% of the 
study area still undeveloped, there are many open farm fields, wooded areas, wetlands, swamps, 
marshes, and waterways.  Moyock is bounded on the east by the Shingle Landing Creek, Northwest 
River, and Tulls Bay. These waterways form a network that empty in the Currituck Sound. The 
western portion of Moyock is comprised mostly of open farm fields with an extensive ditching 
system that drains east to the Northwest River or Tulls Creek. This western edge of the study area 
contains remnant fragments of the Dismal Swamp.          

The Stakeholder Committee recognized the importance of maintaining a rural atmosphere at the 
periphery of the study area, especially along roads and water ways. However, the committee also 
felt it important to enhance a main street, small town feel at the center of the study area. There was 
a general desire during the public input process, for a wider variety and availability of restaurants, 
entertainment, and other retail shopping opportunities.  The delicate balance between maintaining 
rural feel but offering all that a small town has to offer is essential in maintaining and enhancing the 
sense of place and quality of life in Moyock in the future. 

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

20116



Recreation

Policy R 1  Expand and develop recreational opportunities for all ages and users including access to 
the water and natural environment, walking trails, multi-purpose fields, multi-purpose community 
building, and other non-traditional types of recreational opportunities that are consistent with the 
Currituck County Parks and Recreation Master Plan.

Action R 1A:  Explore the feasibility of installing camping platforms along the designated NC 
paddle trail on the Northwest River, Tulls Creek, and Currituck Sound. Establish partnerships 
and seek funding for project implementation.

Action R 1B:  Explore the feasibility of installing a greenway system of boardwalks or natural 
trails adjacent to water bodies, community open space, or conservation areas.

Action R 1C:  Plan and construct community parks and a multipurpose community facility to 
meet the recreational needs of the Moyock community.

Policy R 2  Ensure that all development connects existing or planned public recreational 
improvements and facilities to promote a high quality of life and healthy living.

Action R 2A:  Amend the UDO to incorporate standards that require publicly available 
connections to existing or planned recreational improvements and facilities.

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

Policy Focus Areas

21 117



Heritage:  Where We Come From

Policy H 1  Protect scenic vistas of natural landscapes and features that are important in establishing 
and enhancing the visual character of Moyock from roadways and waterways. This may be 
accomplished through clustering development and providing open space in way that preserves 
scenic vistas.

Policy H 2  Encourage the preservation of significant architectural, historic, and cultural resources 
that are critical to telling the story of Moyock’s rural heritage and atmosphere.

Action H 2A:  Establish partnerships to inventory significant architectural, historic, and cultural 
resources in Moyock.

Action H 2B:  Encourage and support the efforts of local historic preservation advocacy groups 
and other civic groups that work to preserve significant architectural, historic, and cultural 
resources.

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

22118



Community Character:  Where We Are Going

Policy CC 1  Encourage and foster development that is compatible with rural atmosphere, transitional 
areas, and a small town, main street feel consistent with the vision, policies, and future land use 
map of this plan.

Policy CC 2  Encourage non-residential and mixed use development that incorporates building and 
site design to enhance community appearance, promote human scale, and create a unique sense 
of place.  This may include common themed building materials, forms, and site amenities.

Action CC 2A:  Develop regulations and incentives for non-residential and mixed use 
development that establish design standards specific to each activity center in this plan.

Policy CC 3  Recognize the importance of Moyock by creating and enhancing entryways that 
promote a unique sense of place and convey community pride. 

Action CC 3A:  Plan and construct entryways into Moyock and its activity centers that evoke a 
sense of arrival and have positive visual impacts.

Action CC 3B:  Amend the UDO to create regulations that enhance public investment into 
entryways.  This includes appropriate land uses, overall site design, landscaping, signage, and 
screening/location of outdoor storage.

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

Policy Focus Areas

23 119



24

Public Paths and Entryways

Due to high traffic volumes 
and accidents, development 
of a pedestrian and bike 
path system is strongly 
recommended.  

Development of entryway 
points into the community 
are essential to enhance the 
sense of place and creation 
of Moyock as a destination 
(reference Transportation and 
Community Character policies 
and actions).

120



Economic Development & Business

Moyock’s rural atmosphere, proximity to the Hampton Roads area, low taxes, and abundant 
opportunity for growth make it desirable for people, business, and industry.  The new sewer plant, 
available real estate for business ventures, and low taxes draw industry to the area.  Another asset 
to Moyock is the major rail line that connects Currituck to Virginia and runs the entire length of the 
study area.          

During the community engagement process, emphasis was given to fostering a small town, main 
street feel.  The Stakeholder Committee was particularly interested in the “feel” of small town, 
main street.  Emphasis should be given to creating environments and places with a unique feel 
that allow people to interact and create community.  This can not only be accomplished through 
infrastructure improvements, such as public plazas, but also by small businesses that encourage 
community interaction and community programming.  

Moyock’s natural environment and waterways are an underutilized asset.  Other communities in the 
region are capitalizing on their natural resources by creating networks of paddle trails and camping 
platforms making them regional destinations for ecotourism.  This plan explores opportunities for 
tapping into the ecotourism market. 

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

Policy Focus Areas

25 121



Small Town, Main Street

Policy ST 1  Promote the establishment of an area dedicated to community serving businesses that 
foster a small town, main street feel.

Action ST 1A:  Convene meetings with civic groups, business leaders, and the community 
to determine the feasibility of creating a main street in Moyock. A feasibility study should 
incorporate a market analysis and regulatory constraints.

Action ST 1B:  Implement the findings of a feasibility study, make necessary regulatory changes, 
and market appropriately.

Policy ST 2  Support local entrepreneurs that establish community serving businesses that diversify 
the local economy, are in close proximity to residential areas, and promote community interaction.

Action ST 2A:  Review the UDO to identify, modify, and remove regulatory barriers and establish 
incentives for development that is consistent with this plan.

Policy ST 3  Actively market and promote businesses in Moyock to surrounding communities, 
including Hampton Roads and the Albemarle Region.

Action ST 3A:  Establish partnerships to develop marketing and promotional materials specific 
to the Moyock business community.

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

26122



Business & Industry

Policy BI 1  Support the expansion of health care services that meet the needs of local residents 
and other nearby areas. This includes small medical offices, regional medical facilities, and ancillary 
medical services.

Policy BI 2  Encourage well planned mixed use developments to include a range of intensities 
and diverse housing types which capitalize on seasonal traffic volumes and provide increased 
opportunities for local residents and businesses. Large scale mixed use projects should be carefully 
located in areas supported by the future land use map and adequately served by infrastructure and 
county services.

Action BI 2A:  Establish a sewer extension and connection policy that encourages mixed use 
developments to locate in activity centers and full service areas.

Policy BI 3  Promote economic growth proportionate to population growth in order to ensure 
growth of the local tax base is proportionate to increased demand for public services.

Action BI 3A:  Actively market Moyock as an emerging growth area (virtual micropolitan) to 
encourage targeted retail and service development.

Action BI 3B:  Develop regulations or incentives that require large scale residential development 
that utilizes centralized sewer, to include a supporting non-residential component and 
interconnection to existing businesses.

Policy BI 4  Provide industrial development opportunities for cluster industries identified by 
Currituck Economic Development such as defense aero-aviation, port and maritime related 
industries, alternative energy, agriculture and food, and local existing business support.

Action BI 4A:  Identify rail-served, sewered, and other properties suitable for industrial 
development and proactively zone those areas for industrial uses. Ensure that industrial uses 
take place in areas off of the 168 corridor and include conditions for buffering between visual 
impact areas and established residential areas.

Action BI 4B:  Review the UDO to identify, modify, and remove regulatory barriers and establish 
incentives for development that is consistent with this plan.

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

Policy Focus Areas

27 123



Tourism

Policy TO 1  Encourage the continued development of Moyock as a destination to Hampton Roads 
and the Albemarle Region by developing additional recreational opportunities and promoting 
historic and cultural sites.

Action TO 1A:  Convene meetings with businesses, resource managers, and neighboring 
jurisdictions to target and attract entrepreneurs developing eco-tourism and recreational 
opportunities based around Moyock’s abundant natural resources.

Action TO 1B:  Develop branding and marketing materials, such as maps and wayfinding 
signage, that support and promote Moyock as a destination. This should include significant 
architectural, historic, cultural, and natural resources.

Growth Management
  Transportation
  Infrastructure and Services
  Future Land Use Map

Sense of Place & Quality of Life
  Recreation
  Heritage
  Community Character

Economic Development & Business
  Small Town, Main Street
  Business and Industry
  Tourism

28124



The future land use map is one of the most visible components of the SAP.  The map works to 
apply the vision and policies of the plan within the study area by visually showing where growth is 
directed.  The map should be used in conjunction with the entire plan and not weighted as more 
important than the vision, policies, or other recommendations.  

The future land use map is a guide that outlines a desired general pattern of development.  The 
boundaries of the different land uses shown are definitive and reflect transitions from one land 
use to another.  Successful transitions mitigate incompatibilities between adjacent and nearby land 
uses.  Incompatibilities arise when nearby uses differ significantly in terms of intensity, bulk, and/
or scale.  Tools such as change in scale, attention to architectural detail, increase in landscaping, 
distance between buildings or uses, and compatibly in intensity and bulk can allow successful 
transitions between properties with dissimilar characteristics.  Where incompatibility arises from 
use, an intermediate intervening use can serve as a buffer.

Appropriate parameters for successful transitions include: 

Higher intensity commercial uses are appropriately buffered from low to moderate density 
residential areas through an intervening area of low intensity office or medium density 
residential use.  

Higher intensity residential uses are buffered from low to moderate density residential areas 
through increased setbacks, buffers, or landscaping.  In addition, special attention should be 
given to general design and how the proposed development marries existing development.  
Design elements that encourage compatibility could include comparable:

•  Lot sizes at the fringe of the development similar to existing development, 
•  Use of open space to create transitions or give appearance of larger lot size, or;
•  Height or design features including but not limited to building height, orientation of        
    structures, front porches, windows, and other architectural features.  

Future Land Use Map

29 125



30

Future Land Use Map

The map should be used in conjunction with the entire plan and not weighted 
as more important than the vision, policies, or other recommendations. 

126



Future Land Use Designation Descriptions 

Full Service designations are focal points in the community where high amounts of activity occur.  In full service designations 
a broad range of infrastructure and service investments are or will be made available by the public and/or private sectors. 
Infrastructure investments may include, for example, centralized water and sewer, community parks, multipurpose community 
facilities, schools, and fire and rescue facilities.  Full service areas will have high concentrations of public investment and 
medium to higher development intensities.  Mixed use development with both residential and commercial components will be 
present in full service areas.  In addition, clustered or planned commercial and residential areas with diversity in housing types 
is preferred.  Typical densities in full service designations range from 1.5 – 3 units per acre depending on surrounding land uses.  
All development should encourage human scale in full service areas.  Human scale development encourages interconnected 
transportation systems that support both vehicles and pedestrians and contain site amenities designed for humans (i.e. lighting, 
benches, bike racks, etc).  In full service areas, there will be a high degree of architectural elements and creative site design is 
encouraged.  Activity centers are located in full service designations.  
    

Limited Service designations are less intensely developed than full service.  Emphasis in this designation is more on residential 
development and densities. Limited service designations provide for limited availability to infrastructure and services and low 
to moderate residential densities.  Limited service designation has reduced public services such as fire protection, emergency 
services, recreation, and public water.  Residential densities in this designation range between 1 – 1.5 units per acre.  Clustered 
residential and small neighborhood service commercial such as retail, office, basic services, and civic uses can be found in this 
designation.

Rural designations provide for low density, scattered residential, institutional, agricultural, and other traditional rural uses such 
as small scale farm operations.  Residential densities in this designation are low at less than one unit per acre.  Access to public 
water, fire protection, and emergency services is limited but available.  Rural view sheds in this designation are important and 
should be preserved from road and waterways.  

Conservation designations offer protection to significant, limited, or irreplaceable sensitive areas.  The conservation designation 
encompasses wetlands, estuarine and coastal shorelines, public trust and estuarine waters, areas mapped as floodplains and 
floodways, Significant Natural Heritage Areas (as designated by the State Natural Heritage Program), and other similar lands 
that are environmentally significant because of their natural role in the integrity of the coastal region.  These lands include 
but are not limited to bottomland hardwoods, pocosins, and swamp forests containing significant productive, natural, scenic, 
cultural, or recreational resources.  

Future Land Use Map

31 127



Conservation areas should be preserved and not developed.  However, small areas of upland may be appropriate for limited 
development provided that development is performed in a very controlled, low impact manner through careful planning and cautious 
attention to the preservation of key environmental features or habitats.  Development must utilize sustainable design approaches 
that include but are not limited to sustainable building materials, site design that encourages preservation of habitat, and low impact 
development techniques.  Appropriate limited development may include:  passive and active recreational facilities such as trails and 
parks; eco-businesses dependant on water or other natural resource areas as a basis for operation; and governmental and community 
facilities provided that the footprint of development is minimized to preserve important ecological resources and view sheds.  The 
provision of infrastructure and services should not stimulate or intensify development in these fragile areas.  Proper management of 
these areas is needed to conserve the natural, cultural, recreational, scenic, or biologically productive value of these areas. 

Activity Centers are focal points of activity and development in the community.  These are anticipated to have future concentrations 
of uses that serve as destinations or hubs of activity for the surrounding community.  Activity centers provide services on a local and 
regional scale and are generally located in full service areas.  They are characterized by higher intensity uses, compact development 
patterns, walkability, and a higher standard of architectural and site design. Amenities that encourage community interaction such as 
pedestrian plazas, court yards, pocket parks, and a variety of other neighborhood oriented uses are commonly found in activity centers 
including but not limited to schools, day care, parks, civic facilities, beauty shops, drug stores, hardware stores, and restaurants.  Areas 
designated as activity centers should be planned in a way to allow for pedestrian and bicycle movement within the activity center 
and connecting to other activity centers.  Care should be taken to ensure transitions are successful between activity centers and less 
intense uses and designations.  

This plan recommends three types of activity centers:

Retail/Mixed Use includes a mix of retail, restaurant, office and medical services, employment, institutional, and higher 
intensity residential uses.  

Employment includes office, planned corporate parks, warehousing, institutional, light industrial and manufacturing.  
Supporting service industries, retail, restaurant, attached residential, and other complementary services should be included.   

Industrial includes light and heavy industry and manufacturing that are not typically visible from roadways or in close 
proximity to residential areas.

32128



34

Community Transect

The community transect represents a cross section of the future land use map that helps to visualize each land use designation and 
the transitions between designations.  The transect illustrates land uses, development of transportation systems, and preservation and 
enhancement of natural habitats.   The community transect should be used in conjunction with the policies and future land use map.

129



Actions - The work plan of items or measurable outcomes that will be achieved in a specific 
timeframe in order to accomplish the policy and vision.  Unlike a vision or policy, once an action is 
complete it goes away.  Actions work to accomplish policy statements.  

Human Scale - Development that is designed and oriented with people in mind.  This means that 
development is more portioned to a human (smaller scale).  Places with good human scale have 
buildings that reflect an expression of human activity such as human sized doors, windows, and 
porches oriented to the front of buildings, human scaled amenities such as lighting and plazas/
pedestrian seating areas,  and walkways and multi use paths.

Mixed Use - - Development that integrates and blends a variety of land uses and housing types 
including residential, office, commercial, service, employment, and industry with shared vehicular 
use areas and pedestrian access and connections.
  
Policy statements -  Broad, officially adopted positions of the county used by the staff, Board of 
Commissioners, and other appointed boards to review plans, make recommendations, determine 
consistency with the community’s vision, and plan future Capital Improvement Projects and 
services.  Policy statements work to implement the vision.    

Recreation, active - Recreational activities, that are typically organized and performed with others, 
often utilizing equipment and taking place at specific places, sites, or fields.  This includes but is not 
limited to basketball, baseball, softball, soccer, football, other field sports , and playgrounds.
  
Recreation, passive - Recreational activities that make use of existing natural resources, have 
minimal impact, and allow users to experience natural environments.  This includes but is not 
limited to parks, hiking, walking, running, biking, picnicking, boating, kayaking, camping, fishing, 
crabbing, and bird watching. 
  
Rural -  A sparsely developed area where land is primarily used for farming, forestry, water 
dependent uses, very low density residential uses, and open space.
  
Rural atmosphere - Sights, sounds, smells, and overall feel of a rural community.  Vistas of open 
farm fields, wooded areas, swamps, marshes, rivers, creeks, and other natural environments are 
common elements of rural atmosphere.

Vision Statement - Describes the future conditions of Moyock as the community hopes to see it 
in the future.  It is a big picture and the foundation for the policies and actions.  The policies and 
actions work to accomplish the vision.    

Glossary

35 130



Appendix

37 131



 
 
 
 
 
 

1708 E. Arlington Blvd.  -  Greenville, NC 27858-5872  -  1.866.998.2597  -  Fax 252.215.6881  -  www.ecbhlme.org 

Toll Free ECBH Access to Care Number 1.877.685.2415 

East Carolina Behavioral Health (ECBH) is a Local Management Entity/Managed Care Organization serving 
19 counties in eastern NC: Beaufort, Bertie, Camden, Chowan, Craven, Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hertford, Hyde, 
Jones, Martin, Northampton, Pamlico, Pasquotank, Perquimans, Pitt, Tyrrell and Washington. 
 
As a part of its initiative, “Investing in Eastern North Carolina,” ECBH is contracting with United Way of North 
Carolina to bring NC 2-1-1 to 17 of the 19 counties in its service area (Dare and Pitt Counties already have NC 
2-1-1 available). 
 
NC 2-1-1 is a statewide database of community services and resources available to the citizens of North 
Carolina. Maintained by United Way of North Carolina, this database can be accessed via the internet 
(www.nc211.org) or by calling 2-1-1 where available. Through the efforts of ECBH, the phone line 2-1-1 
became available to the citizens of Currituck County on December 31, 2013. The official 2-1-1 kick-off for 
Currituck County will be held on Thursday, April 10, 2014, at 9:00 a.m. at the Currituck Department of Social 
Services. 
 
ECBH is undertaking this initiative to enhance the quality of life of citizens with mental health concerns, 
substance use issues and intellectual and developmental disabilities and their families. People with these 
conditions frequently rely on community services. These individuals are often isolated in the community. Many 
also live on fixed incomes because of their challenges and need the support of community services and 
resources such as transportation, public housing, public health, and faith based services. Standards and 
requirements of ECBH’s contracts and accrediting body require that ECBH makes available all the information 
on community resources that someone with a mental health, substance use or developmental disability condition 
might need. The 2-1-1 call line will give easy access to information about community services. It is a single-
source number that can provide information without the person having to go from one service to another until 
he/she finds the most appropriate resource. Having access to a database of community services can enhance a 
provider or a care coordinator’s ability to connect those individuals to the community services they need. 
 
At the same time, the information in this database is available to all citizens of Currituck County. ECBH is 
pleased that all people of Currituck County can be served through this initiative. 
 
ECBH staff has updated the information in NC 2-1-1 and is now entering information that is currently not 
available in the database. That effort will be completed by the end of April 2014. 
 
For more information on NC 2-1-1, go to http://www.nc211.org/index.php/faq or contact: 

 
Keith Letchworth, M.Ed. 
Community Resource Database Coordinator 
East Carolina Behavioral Health 
1708 E. Arlington Blvd. 
Greenville, NC 27858 
Office: 1-866-998-2597 
Fax: 252-215-6881/2 
E-mail: kletchworth@ecbhlme.org 
Web: www.ecbhlme.org 
Access to Care: 1-877-685-2415 

132

http://www.nc211.org/index.php/faq
mailto:kletchworth@ecbhlme.org
http://www.ecbhlme.org/


 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item Title 

 
 
 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

 
Consideration of An Ordinance Amending Section 10-63 of the Code of Ordinances to Allow Certain Commercial 
and Governmental Activities Involving Motor Vehicles on the Beach Strand and Foreshore from the Dare County 
Line to the North Beach Access Ramp Between May 1 and September 30 
 
 
 
 
 
Brief Description of Agenda Item 
 
The proposed ordinance amendment will allow the use of motor vehicles for certain purposes on the beach 
strand and foreshore from the Dare County line to the North Beach Access Ramp between May 1 and September 
30.  Specifically, the ordinance will allow use of motor vehicles as follows: 
 
1.  For the delivery, placement and pickup of recreational equipment, umbrellas and chairs and collection of solid 
waste by county based commercial entities and management of planned unit development communities located 
adjacent to the Atlantic Ocean. 
 
2.  For activity under a CAMA permit requiring access to the beach and authorized by the county permit officer.  
 
3.  By county employees, county contractors, county vehicles or emergency vehicles in the performance of public 
duties. 
 
Note that this ordinance amendment only provides for the operation of motor vehicles on the beach for certain 
purposes.  The ordinance does not allow for commercial use of the beach which is regulated by the Unified 
Development Ordinance and will be discussed by Planning staff during the Board’s meeting.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Action Requested 
 
Action 
 
 
Person Submitting Agenda Item 
 
Ike McRee, County Attorney 
 
 
Presenter of Agenda Item 
 
Ike McRee, County Attorney 

133



AN ORDINANCE OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 1 
AMENDING SECTION 10-63 OF CHAPTER 10 OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY 2 

CODE OF ORDINANCES  TO ALLOW CERTAIN COMMERCIAL AND 3 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES INVOLVING MOTOR VEHICLES ON THE BEACH 4 

STRAND AND FORESHORE FROM THE DARE COUNTY LINE TO THE NORTH 5 
BEACH ACCESS RAMP BETWEEN MAY 1 AND SEPTEMBER 30  6 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-121 a county may by ordinance define, 7 
regulate, prohibit, or abate acts, omissions, or conditions detrimental to the health, safety, or 8 
welfare of its citizens and the peace and dignity of the county; 9 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1 of Chapter 875 of the 1985 Session Laws the county 10 
may by ordinance regulate, restrict, and prohibit the use of dune or beach buggies, jeeps, 11 
motorcycles, cars, trucks, or any other form of power-driven vehicle specified by the county’s 12 
governing board on the foreshore, beach strand and barrier dune system.  13 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners for the 14 
County of Currituck, North Carolina as follows: 15 

PART I.  The Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North Carolina is amended by rewriting 16 
Section 10-63 of the Code of Ordinances to read as follows: 17 

Sec. 10-63.  Restricted areas. 18 

   (a)  Where there is an improved all-weather road, dedicated to public use, and running 19 
generally north and south and parallel to the beach strand, all vehicles, mopeds, motorcycles or 20 
motor vehicles on the foreshore and beach strand are prohibited between May 1 and September 21 
30.  This section shall apply specifically to, but is not limited to, the foreshore and beach strand 22 
adjacent to the Ocean Sands Subdivision and the Whalehead Subdivision extending from the 23 
Dare County line to the north side of the North Beach Access Ramp at North Beach Access 24 
Road. 25 

   (b) All commercial activities involving motor vehicles, mopeds and horses shall be 26 
prohibited from operating on the Currituck Outer Banks, the beach foreshore and the beach 27 
strand unless so permitted by the Currituck County Department of Planning and Inspections.  28 
This includes vehicles used to tow hang gliders.   29 

   (c)  The provisions of subsection (b) of this section do not apply to the following: 30 

 (1)   delivery, placement and pickup of recreational equipment, umbrellas and chairs  31 
  and collection of solid waste between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 7:00 a.m. and  32 
  5:30 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. by commercial entities maintaining a base of operation  33 
  within  the county and management of planned unit development communities  34 
  adjacent to the Atlantic Ocean ;     35 

134



 (2) activity under a Coastal Area Management Act (CAMA) permit requiring access  1 
  to the beach and authorized by the county local permitting officer; and 2 

 (3) county employees, county contractors, county vehicles or emergency vehicles or  3 
  the drivers thereof, which may be required to enter upon the beach in the   4 
  performance of their duties or a governmental agency, its employees, agents,  5 
  contractors and subcontractors and their vehicles when engaged in beach   6 
  restoration or protection work or conducting scientific research or animal   7 
  preservation studies or operations.  8 

  (c) (d)  Overnight camping of any type is prohibited on the Currituck County Outer Banks, the 9 
beach foreshore and the Beach Strand. 10 

PART II.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 11 
repealed. 12 

PART III.  This ordinance is effective upon adoption. 13 
 14 

ADOPTED this __________ day of ___________________, 2014. 15 
 16 
       ____________________________________ 17 
       S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman  18 
 19 
ATTEST: 20 
_____________________________ 21 
Mary Gilbert, Clerk to the Board 22 
 23 
 24 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 25 
_______________________________ 26 
Donald I. McRee, Jr., County Attorney 27 
 28 
Date adopted:  ________________ 29 
 30 
Motion to adopt by Commissioner ________________ 31 
Second by Commissioner _________________ 32 
Vote: _____ AYES   _____NAYS 33 

135



 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item Title 

 
 
 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

 
Consideration of Ordinance Amending Chapter 8, Article IV of the Code of Ordinances to Make Certain Changes to 
Outdoor Tour Operator Regulations and Amending Section 1-8(i) of the Code of Ordinances to Provide for 
Violation as a Civil Offense 
 
 
 
 
 
Brief Description of Agenda Item 
 
Attached for consideration is an amendment to the Outdoor Tour Operator Ordinance to provide for staff 
recommended modifications to enhance enforcement and to provide a process for selection of new licensee upon 
forfeiture, revocation, nonrenewal or other vacation of a tour license.  The ordinance amendment also provides 
that violation of the ordinance is a civil offense that may be cited witout prior notice.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Action Requested 
 
Action 
 
 
Person Submitting Agenda Item 
 
Ike McRee, County Attorney 
 
 
Presenter of Agenda Item 
 
Ike McRee, County Attorney 

136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



WHALEHEAD SOLID WASTE SERVICE DISTRICT ADVISORY BOARD
2 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

1st Term
Jack Riggle 9/19/11 September 2014

1st Term
Tim Bostaph 9/19/11 September 2014

1st Term
Robert Collins** Matt Hinson  Sept 2015 9/19/11 September 2013

1st Term
Sandra LaRue* Sandra LaRue  Sept 2015 9/19/11 September 2013

1st Term
Dennis Umberger* Dennis Umberger Sept 2014 9/19/11 September 2012

*Reappoint to Update Terms 
**To Be Replaced

144



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD
2 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

 
Martha Burns District 1 Vance Aydlett 3/17/14 1st      March 2016

Ray Griggs District 2 David Griggs 3/17/14 1st      March 2016

District 3 Butch Petrey 1st      March 2016

District 4 Kevin McCord 1st      March 2016

Rose Thompson District 5 Marion Gilbert 3/17/14 1st      March 2015

Barbara Courtney At-Large Paul Martin 3/17/14 1st      March 2015

Sam Miller At-Large Paul O'Neal 3/17/14 1st      March 2015

1st      March 2016

1st      March 2016

1st      March 2015

1st      March 2015

145



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
March 17, 2014 
 
The Board of Commissioners met in the Historic Courthouse Conference Room, at 6:00 PM for 
a work session with Holly White, Senior Planner, for a presentation on the Moyock Small Area 
Plan.   
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 PM for its regularly scheduled meeting at the Historic 
Courthouse in the Board Meeting Room with the following members present: Chairman Paul 
O’Neal, Vice-Chair Paul Martin, Commissioners Aydlett, Gilbert, Griggs, McCord and Petrey. 
 
Chairman O’Neal called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and announced that the Board had met 
in a work session at 6:00 PM on the Moyock Small Area Plan.  
 

A) Invocation 
 
Reverend Ricky Bishop, Coinjock Baptist Church, gave the invocation. 
 

B) Pledge of Allegiance 
  
Reverend Ricky Bishop, Coinjock Baptist Church, led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
  

C) Approval of Agenda 
 

Chairman O’Neal amended the agenda to continue Item 9 in the Consent  
Agenda until the next meeting.  Commissioner Petrey moved to approve the agenda as 
amended.  Commissioner Martin seconded the motion.   Motion carried unanimously. 
 
APPROVED AGENDA 
 

Work Session 

6:00 PM Moyock Small Area Plan 
 
7:00 pm Call to Order 

 

A) Invocation-Reverend Ricky Bishop, Coinjock Baptist Church 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 
C) Approval of Agenda 
D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; please limit comments to 3 
minutes. 

Administrative Reports 
A )  YMCA Presentation  

Public Hearings 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-12 Moyock Commons:  Request for a conditional rezoning of 27.66 

146



 2 March 17, 2014 
 

acres from AG (Agricultural) to CD-SFM (Conditional District-Single Family Mainland), Tax Map 15, 
Parcel 79, Moyock Township. 

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 14-01 Currituck County: Request a text amendment to the Unified 
Development Ordinance, Chapters 7 and 10 to revise the tree protection standards. 

New Business 
 

A) Amendment to Economic Development Advisory Board Ordinance 
B) Board Appointments: 

1. Appointment to Senior Citizens Advisory Board 
2. Appointments to Economic Development Advisory Board 

C) Consent Agenda: 
1. Approval of February 17, 2014, Minutes 
2. Budget Amendments 
3. Mass Casualty Incident Response Plan 
4. Resolution Approving the Exhibition, Use and Discharge of Pyrotechnics at 

Whalehead in Historic Corolla 
5. Right-of-Way Dedication Plat for Currituck Community Park Roads 
6. Request to Dispose of Planning Records 
7. Approval of TEM Tactical Equipment Application for Pawnbroker License 
8. CDBG Monthly Status Report 
9. Award of Contract for Beach Clean Up Services - CONTINUED 
10. NC Department of Transportation Petition for Road Addition of Keller Court, Walnut 

Island, Grandy. 
D) Commissioner’s Report 
E) County Manager’s Report 

 
Closed Session 

Closed session pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the county attorney in order to 
preserve the attorney-client privilege 
 
Adjourn 
 

D)  Public Comment 
 
Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Comment period. 
 
Mary Etheridge, Shawboro, stated that Shawboro is a small farming community which included 
two churches, a community building, a post office and two houses listed on the National 
Registry of Historical Homes.  She noted the approval of a junkyard in Shawboro on December 
5, 2011 was done without consideration for harmony with the surrounding area or a study to 
determine same.  She continued to speak so others would not have to go through what her 
family had to endure.  
 
Chairman O’Neal requested that Ms. Etheridge give an update on the upcoming election and 
early voting.  Ms. Etheridge stated she would give a report later. 
 
Will Crodick, Knotts Island, expressed his concerns with the school system having 14 
combination classes.  He stated the cost to provide a solution to his concern and asked for 
support from the Commissioners and the public to persuade the Board of Education to budget 
for enough teachers to remedy the situation.  He also was concerned that homework was zero 
part of a student’s grade.  He felt the children were receiving a compromised education.  

147



 3 March 17, 2014 
 

 
Chairman O’Neal stated the County could not mandate how the funding was budgeted by the 
Board of Education, which is also an elected Board.   
Dan Scanlon, County Manager, explained that, even if the County was to appropriate the 
additional $400,000 needed, the County could not tell the School Board how to spend the funds.  
 
There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the Public Comment period. 
 
Administrative Reports 
 

A) YMCA Presentation  

Billy George, President and CEO of the YMCA of South Hampton Roads, and Dean Mattix, 
Local and Elizabeth City Community Center Executive, gave the presentation.  Mr. George 
reported the Currituck YMCA has about 4000 members and had 110,000 visits last year.  Forty 
percent come on scholarship.  $350,000 is going towards reduced fees.Two videos were 
played, the first showing how the Y benefitted a stroke victim and the other talking about heroes 
that make the Y successful.  

Dean Mattix noted that some of the heroes they have worked with were community partners 
who pulled together for the good of the community.  Their contributions have gone for 
scholarships.  The Y does not wish to turn anyone away.  It was noted the Y is run with zero 
operational budget from the County. 

Commissioners commended the YMCA staff and thanked the organization for all it does.   

Public Hearings 
 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-12 Moyock Commons:  Request for a 
conditional rezoning of 27.66 acres from AG (Agricultural) to CD-SFM 
(Conditional District-Single Family Mainland), Tax Map 15, Parcel 79, Moyock 
Township. 

 
Ben Woody, Planning and Community Development Director, reviewed the request as well as 
staff, Technical Review Committee and Planning Board recommendations.   

 
CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 

DATE: March 3, 2014 
PB 13-12 Moyock Commons 

 
ITEM:   PB 13-12 Moyock Commons a conditional rezoning of 27.66 acres from 

AG (Agricultural) to CD-SFM (Conditional District -Single Family Mainland).    
 
PROPOSED USE: Single-Family detached residential community established as a 

conservation subdivision. 
 

LOCATION: Moyock – Pudding Ridge Road 

148



 4 March 17, 2014 
 

TAX ID: 0015-000-0079-0000 
  
OWNER:  Moyock Land Co, LLC 
   500 Pacific Ave #600 
   Virginia Beach VA  23451 
 
LAND PLANNER: Hassell & Folkes, PC 
   Jim Bradford, CLA 
   325 Volvo Parkway 
   Chesapeake VA  23320 
 
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Base Zoning 
NORTH: Low Density Residential SFM 
SOUTH Vacant AG 
EAST:  Retail AG 
WEST: Active Farmland/Undeveloped GB 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service within the 

Moyock subarea.  The policy emphasis for the Moyock area is on 
properly managing the increased urban level of growth that this area 
is sure to experience over the next decade and beyond.    Residential 
development densities should be medium to high depending upon 
available services.  In areas where central sewer is proposed or 
existing, additional services are available, and the character of the 
surrounding areas supports it, higher density ranging from 3-4 units per 
acre could be considered though the use of overlay zones.  The 
proposed plan is in keeping with the policies of the plan, some of which 
are: 
Policy HN1:  Currituck County shall encourage development to occur at 
densities appropriate for the location. 
POLICY HN3:  Currituck County shall especially encourage two forms of 
residential development, each with the objective of avoiding traditional 
suburban sprawl: 
1. OPEN SPACE DEVELOPMENTS that cluster homes on less land, 

preserving permanently dedicated open space and often employ 
on-site or community sewage treatment.  These types of 
developments are likely to occur primarily in the Conservation, 
Rural, and to a certain extend the Limited Service areas identified 
on the Future Land Use Map. 

2. COMPACT, MIXED USE DEVELOPMENTS or DEVELOPMENTS NEAR 
A MIXTURE OF USES that promote a return to balanced, self-
supporting community centers generally served by centralized 
water and sewer.  The types of development are contemplated for 
the Full Service Areas identified on the Future Land Use Map. 

Policy HN5:  Currituck County recognizes that there are many types of 
housing, in addition to manufactured housing that are often overlooked 
in meeting the affordable housing needs of young families, workers of 
modest income, senior citizens, and others. 
POLICY ML1:  Currituck County recognizes the particular interest of 
residents and property owners in the Mainland Area in PRESERVING 

149



 5 March 17, 2014 
 

FARMLAND AND OPEN SPACE.  The County shall exercise diligence in 
applying policies, plans, and actions that will encourage compact 
growth and the preservation of farmland and open space in the 
Mainland Area. 

 
CURRENT ZONING: AG (Agricultural)   
  
 
PROPOSED ZONING:  CD-SFM (Conditional District – Single Family Mainland) 
   
CURRENT USE: Undeveloped 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 27.66 acres 
 
ZONING HISTORY: 1989 Official Zoning Map indicates the property was zoned A 

(Agricultural). 
 1974 Official Zoning Map indicates the property was zoned zoned R-

20 (Residential) and A-40 (Agricultural). 
  

UTILITIES:   The proposed development will connect to the county water and sewer 
systems. 

 
TRANSPORTATION:  The proposed streets will be constructed to NCDOT design and 

construction standards.  Stub streets are proposed to the adjacent 
vacant lands.   

FLOOD ZONE: X and Shaded X 
 
WETLANDS: There are .08 acre wetlands identified by the applicant.  The applicant 

will be petitioning the US Army Corps of Engineers to fill the identified 
wetlands. 

 
I. PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS: 

The applicant/owner proposes the following conditions: 
1. Minimum rear yard setback for all residential lots along the perimeter boundary shall be 

as shown on plan.  These setbacks shall apply to all principal uses but shall not apply to 
fences or accessory structures. 

2. On-street parking shall be prohibited by the provision of signage. 
3. The location of rights-of-way, open space areas, setbacks, and stormwater management 

areas shall be as generally shown on the approved conceptual development plan. 
4. The developer agrees that stormwater management for the improvements resulting from 

this application shall not exceed pre-developed discharge rates as allowed by ordinance.  
Such improvements shall be identified by means of a preliminary drainage impact study 
to be provided by the developer and approved by the county prior to submittal of the 
preliminary subdivision plat.  As an alternative, at the developer’s discretion, downstream 
improvements to include ditch regarding and cleaning, piping and the purchase of any 
required easements for the conveyance of stormwater may be accomplished in 
accordance with a county approved plan. 

5. All residential dwellings shall be constructed either with crawl spaces or on raised slabs 
(finished floor at least 16 inches above outside ground grade) 

6. The use of prefabricated structures or trailers as dwellings shall be strictly prohibited. 
 

150



 6 March 17, 2014 
 

II. COMMUNITY  MEETING: 
A community meeting was held on February 22, 2013.  (See Attachment 3) 

 
III. COMPARISON WITH PREVIOUS REQUEST: 

 Previous Request This Request 
Request Rezone from AG to CD-PD-R Rezone from AG to CD-SFM 
Number of Lots/Units 83 55 
Density 3 units/acre 2 units/acre 
Type of Units Single Family Attached and 

Single Family Detached 
Single Family Detached 

Open Space Provided 30.9% 40.4% 
 
 

IV. PRELIMINARY DRAINAGE IMPACT STUDY AND NARRATIVE 
The applicant submitted a preliminary drainage impact study and narrative as supplemental 
information to the conditional zoning application (Attachment 2).  The study and narrative 
indicate the proposed development can meet the Unified Development Ordinance’s 
stormwater management standards.  The study and narrative also specify off-site 
improvements with the stated goal of improving drainage conditions in the community.  Prior 
to submittal of the preliminary plat/use permit, the Technical Review Committee must 
approve a final drainage impact study. 
 

V. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The conditional rezoning request appears to be consistent with the goals, objectives and 
policies of the Land Use Plan and the purposes of the UDO.  The proposed development shall 
be evaluated during the subdivision process to ensure the infrastructure impacts on the 
surrounding area are not increased.    
 
The technical review committee recommends approval of the 27.66 acre rezoning from 
Agricultural (AG) to Conditional District – Single Family Mainland (CD-SFM) subject to the 
conditions as proposed by the applicant and the following proposed condition and amended 
conditions.  All conditions must be agreed in writing by the applicant: 
1. Minimum rear yard setback for all residential lots along the perimeter boundary shall be 

as shown on plan.  These setbacks shall apply to all principal uses but shall not apply to 
fences or accessory structures.  In no instance shall setbacks be less than allowed by the UDO. 

2. Prior to any land disturbing activities within the development, the property owner shall 
conduct a tree inventory plan as required by Section 7.2 of the UDO.  The purpose of 
said plan shall be to identify the number and location of any heritage trees present and 
the methods by which they will be preserved.   

3. That an effort be made to work with the owner of the existing commercial shopping center 
to extend a sidewalk from the proposed development to the shopping center. 

4. The property shall be developed in accordance with the Conceptual Development Plan 
dated December 26, 2013. 

 
VI. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 

The Planning Board recommended approval PB 13-12 to rezone 27.66 acres from Agricultural 
(AG) to Planned Development – Residential (PD-R) and with the following conditions: 

• The Technical Review Committee recommendations. 
• The stormwater management study to be provided by the developer. 

 
 
 

151



 7 March 17, 2014 
 

Board of Commissioners (8-19-13) 
(Rezone 27.66 acres from Agricultural (AG) to Planned Development – Residential (PD-R) 
Case continued. 
 
Planning Board Discussion (7-9-13)  
(Rezone 27.66 acres from Agricultural (AG) to Planned Development – Residential (PD-R) 
Mr. Cooper asked if there is a commercial component to this plan. 
 
Mr. Woody stated no. 
 
Mr. Cooper asked if this project will comply with the new stormwater manual. 
 
Mr. Woody stated yes. 
 
Mr. Craddock asked if Moyock Commons Drive goes to the property line. 
 
Mr. Woody stated yes. 
 
Mr. Bradford stated he is the agent representing the property owner on this property.  Mr. 
Bradford provided an overview of the property. The detached homes price range is $200,000 to 
$275,000 and the unattached homes ranging from $200,000 to $225,000. The developer, at his 
expense, will provide a stormwater management study which will be subject to the county 
approval.  
 
Mr. Winslow stated he is an adjacent property owner. Mr. Winslow stated he received a letter 
from the developer, during the planning stages of Food Lion, to allow overflow into the Lindsay 
ditch.  Mr. Winslow stated the ditch behind Food Lion now runs overflow to the south end of the 
ditch with overflow into the Lindsay ditch. Mr. Winslow did not grant approval. Mr. Winslow is 
concerned with stormwater runoff which can damage his crops. 
 
Mr. Eley stated he is concerned with stormwater drainage, size of the lots, and the outlet going to 
the highway causing traffic issues.  
 
Ms. Lusk provided exhibits for the board showing pictures of flooding and the soil types causing 
drainage issues. Ms. Lusk is concerned with the stormwater drainage, traffic issues, property 
values decreasing, and buffering behind Moyock Commons. 
 
Mr. Hall stated there needs to be a buffer zone between this development and the homes located 
along the northwest property line. Mr. Hall is concerned with stormwater drainage. 
 
Mr. Scaff stated he is concerned with the drainage issues and more houses will create quicker 
stormwater runoff.  
 
Mr. Sanderlin stated he is concerned with flooding in this area.  
 
Mr. Bradford talked about drainage and traffic.  Mr. Bradford offered for consideration a 30 ft. 
buffer which would become part of the common area for lots 12, 13, 14, and 15 as shown on the 
current plan, as well as lots 4 through 11 against E Street.  
 
The Planning Board discussed buffering, type of trees and type of buffering, buffering behind 
Food Lion, Moyock Commons Drive, affordable housing, access to property, and stormwater 
drainage.   

152



 8 March 17, 2014 
 

Mr. Rose stated that Moyock Commons Drive is a private road, which is owned by Moyock 
Commons Property Owners Association and the have no intentions of turning it over to the state. 
Mr. Rose stated this will be a major development for Moyock and an economic benefit for the 
county.   
 
Mr. Cooper asked who will approve the stormwater management study. 
 
Mr. Woody stated the county’s Technical Review Committee. 
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Cooper moved to approve PB 13-12 due to its consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and 
that the request is reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly growth and 
development with the following conditions:  

• The Technical Review Committee recommendations. 
• The stormwater management study to be provided by the developer. 

 
Ms. Newbern seconded the motion. Ayes:  Ms. Newbern, Mr. Wright, Mr. Cartwright, Mr. Cooper, 
and Mr. Clark.  Nays:  Mr. Bell, Ms. Wilson, and Mr. Craddock.  Motion carried.  
 
In response to Commissioners’ questions, Mr. Woody confirmed that the stormwater study area 
would be the subject parcel.  Post-runoff must be less than pre-runoff.   Trees would be 
removed for the pond.  
 
Mr. Scanlon confirmed there is wastewater capacity available and would be a user paid system.   
 
Utilities entry would be along Moyock Commons Drive as well as traffic ingress/egress via 
Moyock Commons Drive.   
 
Commissioners were still concerned about traffic safety and Moyock Commons Drive not being 
a state-maintained road.   
 
Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Hearing.  
 
Bob Parsons, a real estate agent from Edenton, was in favor of the development. 
 
Jim Bradford, Chesapeake, representing the applicant, stated the applicant had modified the 
subdivision housing type to single family detached, 55 units, two units per acre.  Stormwater 
would be routed away from Highway 168 to Shingle Landing Creek.  The developers were 
offering piping improvements.   
 
In response to Commissioner questioning, Mr. Bradford stated roads would be built to NCDOT 
standards.  The previous Quible study had been used for the drainage study. 
 
Stuart Bonell, Chesapeake, developer’s engineer, responded to questions the Commissioners 
had concerning the stormwater pond.  He related the site would be filled to allow for a depth of 
4-6 ft. above groundwater level.  This should not negatively impact E Street.  There would be a 
positive drainage to grade.   
 
Mike Doxey, Soil & Water Conservation Technician, was comfortable with the study.  He felt the 
County’s stormwater plan is one of the strictest in the state, and improvements will help 
neighborhood drainage.   
 

153



 9 March 17, 2014 
 

Ron Rose, Moyock, developer, noted their first rezoning request was denied, thus the changes.  
The property owners association will maintain the roads and stormwater ponds.  Proposed HOA 
fees will be approximately $200 annually.  
 
George Winslow, Carrollton, VA, owns adjacent farmland and has a problem with Ditch 4 
flooding his farm.  There is a box related to the Moyock Commons wastewater plant causing the 
water to divert to his property.  He asked if this could be removed and the ditch dammed.  He 
stated the pipe under Highway 168 is too small.  It was also his opinion that the water table is 
rising.   
 
Eric Weatherly, County Engineer, noted the box should not be removed.   The problem is the 
pipe under Highway 168. 
 
Peggy Lusk, Moyock, spoke about drainage and a study done previously regarding soil types.  
She stated maintenance on the road in front of her house was being maintained by residents.  
The ponds behind the Food Lion overflow.  She had questions and concerns with the 
development and felt the plan was inconsistent with the surrounding area and will impact the 
neighbors.  She also had traffic concerns.   
 
Chairman O’Neal called for a short break.   
 
Jo Drago, Moyock, was concerned about stormwater runoff, particularly in Moyock Landing.  
She advocated a study of all Moyock drainage before any new development.   
 
Sherrie Payne, Moyock, built the last house in Quail Run subdivision and had to install more 
drainfield than previous owners.  She expressed the need to fix the existing problems before 
adding more. 
 
Florence Scaff, Moyock, was concerned with stormwater runoff and overflowing ponds. 
 
James Sanderlin, Moyock, stated he had been coming to the meetings for 15 years and there 
was still a drainage problem.  Ponds do not work.  He felt the existing homeowners should be 
allowed to connect to the central sewer system and that the County should take over drainage. 
 
Marvin Scaff, Moyock, lives adjacent to the proposed development.  He questioned the lot size, 
and stated that damming the ditch would make matters worse.   
 
Mr. Woody explained the lots were ¼ acre in size.   
 
Charles Eley, Moyock, was concerned with drainage.  He was also concerned with traffic 
blocking the intersection during the summer, questioned whether school buses could travel on 
private roads and whether there was enough space in the schools for more children.  He felt the 
central sewer should be for businesses since they pay more taxes. 
 
Paul Garrett, Moyock, asked the Commissioners to approve the request.   
 
James Sanderlin, Moyock, spoke again about the trees growing in Ditch #4 and concern there 
was no public roadway and the private road could be closed in the future.  
 
Commissioner McCord asked Ms. Lusk about the agriculture specialist to whom she had 
referred as taking soil samples.  Ms. Lusk responded the name was Anne Radintz. 
 
 

154



 10 March 17, 2014 
 

Jo Drago, Moyock, noted that nearby Puddin Ridge Road was named by the Indians and meant 
“Jelly Earth.”  
 
There was further discussion among the Commissioners regarding enforcement of road 
maintenance.  Regarding concern the road could be blocked, Mr. Woody explained the road 
was dedicated for public use and could not be blocked.   
 
Commissioners also questioned the school bus concerns and learned from Mr. Woody the 
Schools are part of the review process and had raised no concerns.   
 
Mr. Bradford responded to a question whether the developer was considering connectivity with 
E Street.  He stated they would not promote connectivity.  The stub could stop at the open 
space and a hammerhead turnaround could be constructed.   
 
Marvin Scaff, Moyock, stated E Street was private property. 
 
David Palmer, Barco, stated he had been on the Land Use Plan committee and one of the plans 
discussed was nodal development.  This project would allow for nodal development in the 
future, with interconnectivity so as not to force so many vehicles onto the highway to reach the 
commercial area up front.  Regarding allowing residential connection to the wastewater system, 
he pointed out that, although the system was built to accommodate businesses, those 
businesses cannot survive without customers.  He stated growth is inevitable, and he urged the 
Board to put the mechanisms in place to help the County grow in the right way.   

 
There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Commissioner Griggs summarized the Public Hearing comments and expressed the need to 
be consistent with the rules and regulations presently in place.    
 
Commissioner Martin moved to deny PB 13-12 due to its inconsistency with POLICY HN1 of 
the Land Use Plan because the proposed density is not appropriate for the location, and that 
the request is not reasonable and not in the public interest.  Commissioner Petrey seconded 
the motion. 
 
Chairman O’Neal noted the Land Use Plan was based on input from citizens.  He wanted to 
do what the county wanted but not be inconsistent with the LUP.  He referred to the Moyock 
Small Area Plan to be considered for adoption at the next meeting and noted mixed 
messages were being sent to businesses.  
  
Commissioner restated their concerns.   
 
Chairman O’Neal called for the vote.  The motion was defeated 3 yes votes to 4 no votes  
with Chairman O’Neal, Commissioners Aydlett, Griggs and McCord voting no. 
 
Commissioner Griggs moved to approve PB 13-12 due to its consistency with the Land Use 
Plan’s density allowances for the Full Service classification and policy emphasis of the 
Moyock Sub-Area, and that the request is reasonable and in the public interest.  
Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion.  Motion carried 4 yes votes to 3 no votes with 
Commissioners Gilbert, Martin and Petrey voting no.    
    

155



 11 March 17, 2014 
 

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 14-01 Currituck County: Request a text 
amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance, Chapters 7 and 10 to 
revise the tree protection standards. 

 
Ben Woody, Planning and Community Development Director, reviewed the text amendment 
including staff and Planning Board recommendations.   
  
The following text amendment submitted by the Currituck County Planning and Community 
Development Department is intended to reduce the tree protection standards of the Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO). 
 
Since the adoption of the new UDO, county staff has been applying the tree protection standards 
established.  The standards require trees of a certain size and species to be protected during 
development.  If these trees, called “heritage trees”, cannot be saved, they must be replaced by 
trees of the same species equaling the caliper of the tree removed.  
 
Staff has found on many occasions, especially in wooded areas, that the tree protection 
standards may be difficult for the developer or property owner to comply with.  Staff believes 
the reason is because the UDO may classify trees with a relatively small caliper as heritage trees.  
 
To correct the issue, staff is proposing to increase the size of trees required to be protected.  
Specifically: 

• Live Oaks would have to be 12 inches or greater in diameter at breast height to be 
considered a heritage tree.  This is an increase of four inches from the current standard of 
eight inches.  

• All other protected species would have to be 24 inches or greater in diameter at breast 
height to be considered a heritage tree.  This is an increase of 6 inches from the current 
standard of 18 inches.  

 
Also, staff is requesting a reduction in the required amount and size of the replacement trees if a 
heritage tree is removed.  The proposed standards would require just half of the cumulative 
caliper inches of the heritage tree be replaced (as opposed to the total cumulative caliper inches), 
and allow for two inch caliper replacement trees (as opposed to the currently required three inch 
caliper).   
 
Finally, in order to allow for more flexibility and diversity, staff is proposing that only half of the 
cumulative caliper inches of the replacement trees be the same species of the heritage tree 
removed.  The remaining required caliper inches of replacement trees can be other species of 
trees. 
 
The Planning Board recommended unanimous approval at their February 11, 2014 meeting. 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (2-11-14) 
Mr. Woody said this text amendment does not apply if you are timbering your land or to single 
family lots, but it does apply to commercial site plans and major subdivision plans.  
 
Mr. Cooper said this request is more likely to accomplish the goal, which is to protect the nicer 
trees.  
 
Mr. Woody said the following trees are not considered as heritage trees: 

• Southern yellow pine; 

156



 12 March 17, 2014 
 

• Bradford pear; 
• Mulberry; 
• Sweet gum; and 
• Silver maple. 

 
Mr. Woody said if a development sets aside open space that is wooded and clarifies that it is to 
remain as forestry property, then it can be timbered. This should be done at the beginning stages 
of site planning. 
 
Mr. Clark asked about the size of the tree to be replanted. 
 
Mr. Woody stated the ordinance states a minimum of three caliper inches, but staff has talked 
with the NC Extension and they recommended two inches to ensure the trees live.  
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Cooper moved to approve PB 14-01 as presented based on the Unified Development 
Ordinance, staff experience using the previous requirements, and staff recommendation that the 
standards that are rewritten are more user friendly and accomplish the same goal of tree 
protection in the county. Ms. Newbern seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously.  
 

Tree Protection 
UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 

 
Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 7: Environmental Protection, and 
Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement, to revise the tree protection standards of the UDO. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
Item 1: That Section 7.2.3 Protection of Heritage Trees is amended by adding the following 
underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 

A.  Heritage Trees Defined 

(1)  For the purposes of this section, “heritage trees” shall include all existing Live 
Oak (Quercus Virginiana) with a diameter at breast height (DBH) of eight 12 
inches or greater, as well as all other existing trees with a DBH of 18 24 inches 
or greater.  

 

E.  Replacement/Mitigation of Heritage Trees 

Those causing the destruction or removal of a healthy heritage tree, unless exempted, 
shall be responsible for the following mitigation.  

(1)  Replacement Trees Required 

Each healthy heritage tree removed or destroyed shall be replaced by 
replacement trees with a cumulative caliper measurement that equals or exceeds 
one-half the diameter of the heritage tree(s) removed.  Each replacement tree 
shall be at least three two inches in caliper at the time of planting, be of the 
same species as the heritage tree removed, and be replanted within 12 months 
of the removal or destruction of the heritage tree(s).  At least one-half of the 

157



 13 March 17, 2014 
 

cumulative caliper inches of the replacement trees shall be of the same species 
as the heritage tree removed. 

 

Item 2: That Section 10.5 Definitions is amended by adding the following underlined language: 
 

CALIPER 
A horticultural method of measuring the diameter of a tree trunk for the purpose of 
determining size. The caliper of the trunk is measured six inches above the ground 
for trees up to and including four inches in diameter, 12 inches above the ground 
for trees greater than four inches and up to ten inches in diameter, and at breast 
height (4½ feet) for trees ten inches or greater in diameter.  Trees with multiple 
trunks should be treated as multiple trees and the caliper for each trunk added to 
aggregate diameter measurement. 

 
Item 3: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 
 
Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Hearing.  There being no comments, he closed the Public 
Hearing.   
 
Commissioner Petrey moved to approve PB 14-01 due to its consistency with the Community 
Appearance Policies of the Land Use Plan and that the request is reasonable and in the public 
interest.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
New Business 
 

A) Amendment to Economic Development Advisory Board Ordinance 
 

Ike McRee, County Attorney, reviewed the amendment which increased the number of members 
from seven to eleven.  The initial appointments would be staggered for one or two years.  
Commissioners agreed one year terms would be nominations by Commissioners Gilbert, Martin 
and O’Neal plus two of the additional members.  Two year terms would be nominations by 
Commissioners Aydlett, Griggs, Petrey, and McCord, plus two of the additional members. 
 
Commissioner Petrey moved to approve the amendment to the Economic Development Board 
Ordinance.  Commissioner McCord seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

158



 14 March 17, 2014 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE III, DIVISION 2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
ADVISORY BOARD TO PROVIDE FOR THE ADDITION OF FOUR MEMBERS TO 
THE ECONOMIC ADVISORY BOARD WHO NEED NOT BE RESIDENTS OF THE 

COUNTY BUT HAVE AN ACTIVE BUSINESS INTEREST IN THE COUNTY 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-76 a board of commissioners may 
change the composition and manner of selection of boards, commissions, and agencies, and may 
generally organize and reorganize the county government in order to promote orderly and 
efficient administration of county affairs; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners for the 
County of Currituck, North Carolina as follows: 

PART I.  Chapter 2, Article II, Division 2 of the Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North 
Carolina is amended to read as follows 

Sec. 2-112. - Composition.  
The economic development advisory board shall be composed of seven members who are 

citizens residents of the county and four members who need not be residents of the county but 
who shall at the time of appointment be actively connected with and have experience in 
economic development, agriculture, business or industry within the county. One member of the 
board of commissioners, the county manager, the president of the Currituck County Chamber of 
Commerce or designee and a representative of the College of the Albemarle appointed by the 
board of commissioners shall be ex officio members without a vote.  

Sec. 2-113. - Appointment and terms of members.  
The citizen members of the county economic development advisory board, other than the ex 

officio members, shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the board of commissioners 
in the manner set forth in sections 2-96 and 2-97.  The initial economic development advisory 
board is to consist of three five appointees for a term of one year and four six appointees for a 
term of two years.  Thereafter, all appointments are to be for terms of two years.  

The commissioner serving as an ex officio member shall be appointed by the board of 
commissioners on the first Monday in December to serve for a two-year term.  

PART II. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 

PART III.  This ordinance is effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 

B) Board Appointments 
1. Appointment to Senior Citizens Advisory Board 

 
Commissioner Gilbert nominated Rick Bell.  Mr. Bell was unanimously appointed to the Senior 
Citizens Advisory Board. 
 

2. Appointments to Economic Development Advisory Board 
 

The following were unanimously appointed to the Economic Development Advisory Board: 

159

http://library.municode.com/HTML/12419/level4/COOR_CH2AD_ARTIIIAUBOCO_DIV1GE.html%23COOR_CH2AD_ARTIIIAUBOCO_DIV1GE_S2-96MEAPREBO
http://library.municode.com/HTML/12419/level4/COOR_CH2AD_ARTIIIAUBOCO_DIV1GE.html%23COOR_CH2AD_ARTIIIAUBOCO_DIV1GE_S2-97COTEOF


 15 March 17, 2014 
 

 
 Martha Burns, nominated by Commissioner Aydlett for a two year term 
 Ray Griggs, nominated by Commissioner Griggs for a two year term 
 Rose Thompson, nominated by Commissioner Gilbert for a one year term 
 Barbara Courtney, nominated by Commissioner Martin for a one year term 
 Sam Miller, nominated by Commissioner O’Neal for a one year term 
 
The nominations by Commissioners Petrey and McCord were tabled.  The additional four 
appointments were also tabled. 
  

C) Consent Agenda: 
1. Approval of February 17, 2014, Minutes 
2. Budget Amendments 
3. Mass Casualty Incident Response Plan 
4. Resolution Approving the Exhibition, Use and Discharge of 

Pyrotechnics at Whalehead in Historic Corolla 
5. Right-of-Way Dedication Plat for Currituck Community Park Roads 
6. Request to Dispose of Planning Records 
7. Approval of TEM Tactical Equipment Application for Pawnbroker License 
8. CDBG Monthly Status Report 
9. Award of Contract for Beach Clean Up Services   CONTINUED 
10. NC Department of Transportation Petition for Road Addition of Keller 

Court, Walnut Island, Grandy. 
 

Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Commissioner Martin 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        10535 513000 
 

Utilities 
 

 $                    4,000  
  10535 514000 

 
Travel 

   
 $                  1,000  

10535 514500 
 

Training & Education 
   

 $                  2,000  
10535 516000 

 
Maintenance & Repair 

   
 $                  1,000  

        
        
     

 $                    4,000  
 

 $                  4,000  

        
        Explanation: Communications (10535) - Transfer funds for increased utility costs for tower sites 

to run the 800 MHz communication system. 
  Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

 

160



 16 March 17, 2014 
 

 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        12543 554003 
 

Insurance - Moyock 
 

 $                  10,000  
  12543 545000 

 
Contract Services 

   
 $                10,000  

        
     

 $                  10,000  
 

 $                10,000  

        
        Explanation: Moyock VFD (12543) - Transfer funds as requested in e-mail dated February 13, 

2014 from Moyock Volunteer Fire Department. 
  Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - No change. 

 
 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        10640 532004 
 

FCS Supplies 
 

 $                    1,739  
  10330 449900 

 
Miscellaneous Grants 

   
 $                  1,739  

        
     

 $                    1,739  
 

 $                  1,739  

        
        Explanation: Cooperative Extension (10640) - Increase appropriations to record additional grant 

funds for the Senior's Health Insurance Information Program (SHIIP). 
  Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $1,739. 

 
 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        10510 557500 
 

Crime Control Act 
 

 $                  20,000  
  

10390 499900 
 

Appropriated Fund 
Balance 

   
 $                20,000  

        
     

 $                  20,000  
 

 $                20,000  

        
        

161



 17 March 17, 2014 
 

Explanation: Sheriff (10510) - Increase appropriations for additional utilities and other operating 
expenses for the narcotics unit and to replace MCT computers for the narcotics 
unit.  This is funded through restricted funds.   

  Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $20,000. 
 
 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        10750 514000 
 

Travel 
 

 $                    2,000  
  10750 561000 

 
Professional Services 

 
 $                  18,500  

  10750 532000 
 

Supplies 
 

 $                    2,000  
  10752 519000 

 
Medical Transportation 

 
 $                    2,000  

  10752 519005 
 

State Foster Care & Boarding  $                  20,050  
  10752 519600 

 
Daycare 

 
 $                  25,925  

  10330 430000 
 

DSS Miscellaneous 
   

 $                28,525  
10330 431101 

 
Medical Transportation 

   
 $                  2,000  

10330 431800 
 

Foster Care & Boarding Home 
  

 $                10,025  
10330 432800 

 
Day Care 

   
 $                25,925  

10750 516000 
 

Repairs & Maintenance 
   

 $                  4,000  

        
        
     

 $                  70,475  
 

 $                70,475  

        
        Explanation: SOCIAL SERVICES ADMIN (750) & PUBLIC ASSISTANCE(752) - Transfer funds 

for increased travel required for foster care clients and increase appropriations to 
reflect changes in State funding allotments.   

  Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $66,475. 
 
 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        62828 545000 
 

Contract Services 
 

 $                    7,500  
  62360 480700 

 
Penalties & Interest 

   
 $                  2,000  

62390 499900 
 

Appropriated Retained 
Earnings 

  
 $                  5,500  

        
     

 $                    7,500  
 

 $                  7,500  

        
        

162



 18 March 17, 2014 
 

Explanation: Newtown Road Sewer District (62828) - Increase appropriations for additional 
sludge removal to close out the Newtown Sewer. 

  Net Budget Effect: Newtown Road Sewer District Fund (62) - Increased by $7,500. 
 
 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        10530 545000 
 

Contract Services 
 

 $                  82,500  
  

10390 499900 
 

Appropriated Fund 
Balance 

   
 $                82,500  

        
     

 $                  82,500  
 

 $                82,500  

        
        Explanation: Emergency Medical Services (10530) - Increase appropriations for Medicaid 

Ambulance Cost Settlement from audit for FY 2010.  This cost will be deducted 
from the current year settlement until the appeal has been finalized.   

  Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $82,500. 
 
 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        
52531 594501 

 

Elevation Grant HMGP 4019-
0021  $                337,710  

  52330 445000 
 

Elevation Grant HMGP 4019-0021 
 

 $              337,710  

        
        

        
     

 $                337,710  
 

 $              337,710  

        
        Explanation: Emergency Management Grants (52531) - Increase appropriations to record award 

of HMGP 401-0021 grant for the elevation of three residential structures.  This will 
be funded through 75% federal funds and 25% State funds.   

  Net Budget Effect: Multi-Year Grant Fund (52) - Increased by $337,710. 
 
 
 
 
 

163



 19 March 17, 2014 
 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        10460 545000 
 

Contracted Services 
 

 $                  15,000  
  10460 592000 

 
Courthouse Projects 

   
 $                15,000  

        
     

 $                  15,000  
 

 $                15,000  

        
        Explanation: Public Works (10460) - Transfer funds to cover snow removal and contract 

increases. 
  Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

 
 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        10461 532000 
 

Supplies 
 

 $                       300  
  10461 511000 

 
Telephone & Postage 

 
 $                       250  

  10461 526000 
 

Advertising 
   

 $                     250  
10461 511010 

 
Data Transmission 

   
 $                     300  

        
     

 $                       550  
 

 $                     550  

        
        Explanation: Public Utilities (10461) - Transfer funds for operations for the remainder of this 

fiscal year. 
  Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

 
 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        10490 545000 
 

Contract Services - Other 
 

 $                       500  
  10490 545003 

 
Contract Services - Ct/Jail 

 
 $                    1,100  

  
10490 516000 

 

Repairs & Maintenance - 
Other 

  
 $                  1,600  

10490 590003 
 

Capital Outlay - Ct/Jail 
 

 $                    5,000  
  10490 546003 

 
Solicitor's Office Expense 

   
 $                  5,000  

164



 20 March 17, 2014 
 

        
     

 $                    6,600  
 

 $                  6,600  

        
        Explanation: Court Facility Fees (10490) - Transfers for contract increases and to replace door 

on Judicial Building Sallyport. 
  Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
APPROVING THE EXHIBITION, USE AND DISCHARGE OF 

PYROTECHNICS AT WHALEHEAD IN HISTORIC COROLLA  
COROLLA, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §14-410 and §14-413, a display operator 
that will exhibit, use or discharge pyrotechnics at a public exhibition must receive 
written authority for such public exhibition from the Board of Commissioners for a 
county; and 
 
WHEREAS, a display operator must provide proof of insurance in the amount of at 
least $500,000.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dominion Fireworks, Inc. is under contract with Currituck County to 
provide an exhibition of fireworks at the county’s property known as Whalehead in 
Historic Corolla, Corolla, North Carolina, on July 4, 2014, which will be a public 
exhibition, and Dominion Fireworks, Inc. has provided a certificate of insurance 
evidencing insurance coverage in an amount in excess of $500,000.00. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for 
Currituck County, North Carolina, that:  
 
Section 1. Dominion Fireworks, Inc., is authorized to exhibit, use or discharge 
pyrotechnics for public exhibition at that property known as Whalehead in Historic 
Corolla, 1100 Club Road, Corolla North Carolina on July 4, 2014. 
 

Section 2. This resolution shall be effective upon adoption. 
 

D) Commissioner’s Report 
 
Commissioner McCord announced a baseball camp sponsored by Charles Pickell.  He thanked 
the Moyock Fire Department.  He noted the Parks and Rec 10 Year Olds All Star team defeated 
Elizabeth City.  The Wild Horse Foundation had commended Vic Lasher and Mike Davenport for 
saving a wild horse.  He also announced a Garland Acres golf tournament. 
 
Commissioner Martin reminded anyone needing help with their taxes to make an appointment at 
the Senior Center before April 10.   
 
Commissioner Aydlett reported he, Mr. Scanlon and Chief Glover had met with the Chair and 

165



 21 March 17, 2014 
 

Vice-Chair of the Fire and EMS Board regarding the assessment study and they are ready to 
move forward.   
 
Commissioner Gilbert announced a new business in the community, Pass the Salt.  She also 
announced the St. Luke’s Episcopal Church was now meeting in the former Courthouse Café 
building.  The Moyock Small Area Plan was moving forward.  Crawford Fire Department was 
sponsoring a Spaghetti Dinner and the Shawboro Ruritan Club was sponsoring a Prime Rib 
Dinner.  She also announced that NCDOT would be paving some of the roads in Ranchland 
subdivision.   
 
Chairman O’Neal announced the County had been awarded $2.5 million from the State for 
construction of the Southern Parallel Taxiway.        
   

E) County Manager’s Report 
 
Dan Scanlon, County Manager, reminded the Board that the Economic Development Advisory 
Board would need more appointees before they would have a quorum to conduct a meeting.   
 

Closed Session 

Closed session pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the county 
attorney in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege. 

 

Commissioner Gilbert moved to go into closed session pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-
318.11(a)(3) to consult with the county attorney in order to preserve the attorney-client 
privilege regarding Swan Beach Corolla v. Currituck County.  Commissioner Martin seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.   

 

Adjourn 

After reconvening from Closed Session, no action was taken.   There being no further business, 
Commissioner Gilbert moved to adjourn.  Commissioner Martin seconded the motion.  The 
meeting was adjourned. 

 

166



Number 2014082

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10790 513000 Utilities 1,000$                        
10790 516000 Repairs & Maintenance 1,000$                      

1,000$                        1,000$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 7th day of April 2014, passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Library (10790) - Transfer funds to increase utilities budget,

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

167



Number 2014083

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10410 502000 Salaries 30,816$                      
10410 505000 FICA 2,357$                        
10410 506000 Health Insurance 158$                           
10410 506001 Unemployment Insurance 4$                                
10410 507000 Retirement 3,783$                        
10410 590000 Capital Outlay 80$                              
10410 526000 Advertising 3,500$                      
10410 561000 Professional Services 1,013$                      
10415 502000 Salaries 23,130$                    
10415 505000 FICA 1,170$                      
10415 506000 Health Insurance 5,546$                      
10415 506001 Unemployment Insurance 2$                                
10415 507000 Retirement 2,841$                      

37,200$                      37,200$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 7th day of April 2014, passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Administration (10410); Legal (10415) - Transfer lapsed salaries from Legal to Administration to amend 
current Clerk to the Board retirement date, pay out accrued vacation and hire replacement position to train 
with current position from May 19 through June 30.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

168



Number 2014084

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

60808 533601 System Supplies 1,500$                       
60808 531000 Gas 3,000$                       
60808 533801 Chemicals 4,500$                     

61818 533800 Chemicals 4,000$                     
61818 545000 Contract Services 4,000$                       

66868 532000 Supplies 10,000$                     
66868 516000 Maintenance & Repair 7,000$                     
66868 545000 Contract Services 3,000$                     

67878 516000 Repairs & Maintenance 700$                          
67878 533000 Supplies 2,100$                       
67878 545000 Contract Services 1,400$                       
67878 553000 Dues & Subscriptions 1,500$                     
67878 533800 Chemicals 1,500$                     
67878 533200 Lab Tests 1,200$                     

68888 513000 Utilities 1,300$                       
68888 516000 Repairs & Maintenance 400$                          
68888 531000 Gas 200$                        
68888 533800 Chemicals 1,500$                     

24,400$                     24,400$                   

Explanation:

Southern Outer Banks Water Fund (66) - No change.

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # Clerk to the Board

Moyock Central Sewer Fund (67) - No change.

Mainland Water Fund (61) - No change.

Walnut Island Sewer Fund (68) - No change.

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 7th day of April 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Ocean Sands Water and Sewer (60808); Mainland Water (61818);Southern Outer Banks Water 
(66868); Moyock Central Sewer (67878); Walnut Island Sewer (68888) - Transfer for operations 
for the remainder of this fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Ocean Sands Water and  Sewer Fund (60) - No change.



Number 2014085

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10531 532000 Supplies 9,137$                        
10330 445000 Emergency Management Grant 9,137$                      

9,137$                        9,137$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 7th day of April 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Emergency Management (10531) - Increase funding to record Homeland Security Grant 
funding for 3 exercises.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $9,137.



Number 2014086

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10540 553000 Dues & Subscriptions 250$                           
10540 526000 Advertising 250$                         
10540 516200 Vehicle Maintenance 950$                           
10540 514000 Travel 350$                         
10540 514500 Training & Education 600$                         
10660 561000 Professional Services 500$                           
10660 545000 Contract Services 500$                         
10660 531000 Gas 200$                           
10660 516200 Vehicle Maintenance 500$                           
10660 514800 Fees Paid to Officials 700$                         

2,400$                        2,400$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 7th day of April 2014, passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Inspections(10540); Community Development (10660) - Transfer budget funds for operations for the 
remainder of this fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

171



Number 2014087

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10540 553000 Dues & Subscriptions 250$                           
10540 526000 Advertising 250$                         
10540 516200 Vehicle Maintenance 950$                           
10540 514000 Travel 350$                         
10540 514500 Training & Education 600$                         
10660 561000 Professional Services 500$                           
10660 545000 Contract Services 500$                         
10660 531000 Gas 200$                           
10660 516200 Vehicle Maintenance 500$                           
10660 514800 Fees Paid to Officials 700$                         

2,400$                        2,400$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 7th day of April 2014, passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Inspections(10540); Community Development (10660) - Transfer budget funds for operations for the 
remainder of this fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

172



Number 2014088

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10530 503000 Part-time Salaries 20,000$   
10530 502100 Overtime 50,000$   
10530 553000 Dues & Subscriptions 150$   
10530 545000 Contract Services 2,700$   
10530 590000 Capital Outlay 44,000$   
10310 400013 Ad Valorem Taxes - 2013 Levy 39,450$   
10530 502000 Salaries - Regular 74,550$   
10530 561000 Professional Services 150$   
10530 514000 Travel 700$   
10530 514800 Fees Paid to Officials 2,000$   

116,850$   116,850$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 7th day of April 2014, passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Emergency Medical Services (10530) - Increase appropriations to purchase a used 4 X 4 ambulance to use 
in the off-road area.  Also, transfer budgeted funds to upgrade tires on ambulance,  transfer funds to 
overtime to cover for employees on FMLA and Worker's Comp and operating transfers for the remainder of 
this fiscal year. 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

173



Number 2014089

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

12548 514515 Travel & Training 4,800$   
12548 516115 Building & Grounds 11,633$   
12548 526015 Promotions 1,200$   
12458 561015 Professional Services 500$   
12548 553015 Dues & Subscriptions 8,000$   
12548 544015 Volunteer Assistance 15,000$   
12548 545000 Contract Services 3,633$   
12548 532115 Fire Supplies 7,500$   

26,133$   26,133$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 7th day of April 2014, passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Knotts Island Vol Fire Dept (12548) - Operating transfers for Knotts Island Vol Fire Department as requested 
in e-mail dated March 19, 2014.

Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - No change.

174



Number 2014090

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10775 506000 Insurance Expense 3,240$   
10775 514000 Travel 600$   
10775 526000 Advertising 300$   
10775 531000 Gas 1,500$   
10775 545000 Contract Services - Nutrition 2,040$   

3,840$   3,840$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 7th day of April 2014, passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Senior Citizens Center (10775) - Transfer funds to increase health insurance require for part-time worker 
under the Affordable Care act and for additional Senior programming.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

175



Number 2014091

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10750 545000 Contract Services 2,540$   
10750 557000 Crisis Intervention 3,161$   
10750 557701 LIEAHP 3,982$   
10760 585001 Donations - Currituck Kids 2,000$   
10750 502000 Salaries 830$   
10330 430000 DSS Miscellaneous 8,853$   
10380 487001 Donations - Currituck Kids 2,000$   

11,683$   11,683$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 7th day of April 2014, passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Social Services Administration (10750); County Assistance (10760) - Increase budget to reflect increases in 
State funding authorizations and donations collected.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by 10,853.

176



Number 2014092

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

51800 596100 Professional Services 10,459$   
51800 588000 Contingency 10,236$   
51800 594500 Contract Services 295,763$   
51800 597000 Remiburseable Expenses 12,561$   
51848 598001 Central Elementary Bus Parking 223,245$   
51800 587050 T T - Co Govt Facilities 84,856$   

318,560$   318,560$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 7th day of April 2014, passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

COA Construction (51800) - Transfer residual funds to County Governmental Construction to fund Central 
bus parking and to close out COA construction.

Net Budget Effect: School Facilities Construction Fund (51) - No change.

177



Number 2014093

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10460 503500 Temporary Services 2,898$   
10460 502000 Salaries - Full Time 2,898$   

2,898$   2,898$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 7th day of April 2014, passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Public Works (10460) - Appropriate funds to hire a temporary maintenance worker at a rate equivalent to 
Grade 53 step 1 to fill position while employee is on FMLA from May 25 though August 5.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

178



Number 2014094

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10430 503500 Temporary Services 7,200$   
10430 505000 FICA 551$   
10310 400013 Ad Valorem Taxes - 2013 Levy 7,751$   

7,751$   7,751$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 7th day of April 2014, passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Elections (10430) - Appropriat funds to hire a temporary Deputy Elections Director at a rate of $15/hr  to 
serve while employee is on FMLA during the May primary from mid April until June 30.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $7,751.

179



County of Currituck 
County Manager’s Office 

 153 Courthouse Road, Suite 204 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929-0039 

Telephone: (252) 232-2075 
Facsimile: (252) 232-3551 

M E MO R A N D U M 

TO: Board of County Commissioners 

FROM: Eileen Wirth, Project Coordinator 

DATE: March 10, 2014 

Dear Commissioners: 

On February 24, 2014 the bid opening for the Beach Clean Up Service was held at 3:00 p.m. in the BOC meeting room. 
Four bids were submitted as follows: 

• Stormwater Pond Management, Inc., Knotts Island, NC $22,942.40 

• Ponton and Company/Drifting Sand Services , $29,300.00 
Corolla, NC                    Southern Shores, NC

• Corolla Construction Inc., Carova, NC $31,000.00 

• Corolla Surf Shop, Corolla, NC $42,000.00 

This contract was initiated in 2013 with the adoption of the Unattended Property on the Beach ordinance adopted by 
the Board of Commissioners.  Gary Smith of Corolla Surf Shop was awarded the contract effective May 2013 in the 
amount of $26,160.00. 

This year we modified the contract to be more specific in the scope of services, setting out specific days and time of 
day for tagging and removal, and advertised the service using the informal bid process.   

The low bidder, Stormwater Pond Management, Inc., is based out of Knotts Island, NC.  I contacted Stormwater Pond 
Management to inquire further about their operation and if their intent was to manage the contract from Knotts 
Island or the beach.  Chris Conner, Estimator for Stormwater Pond Management, Inc., told me he had priced the 
contract based on running the operation from Knotts Island and driving around to Corolla on the days they needed to 
be on the beach.   He indicated the commute time would be during the off hours of heavy tourist travel.  Mr. Conner 
said he would be managing the contract personally and would make himself available for any issues that may need 
addressing during the term of the contract. 

Based on the additional information provided by the bidders, staff’s recommendation would be to award the contract 
to the low bidder, Stormwater Pond Management, Inc. in the amount of $22,942.40. 

180



COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners, North Carolina that pursuant 
to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital 
project ordinance is hereby adopted: 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is design, bid and construction of Southern Parallel 
Taxiway – Division of Aviation Grant 36237.8.9.1. 

SECTION 2. The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

     S Parallel Taxiway - Grant 36237.8.9.1 123,045$         

123,045$         

SECTION 3. The following revenues are available to complete this project: 

Transfer from School Capital Construction Fund 12,304$            
State Aid to Airports 110,741 

123,045$          

SECTION 4. The Finance Director is hereby directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the 
financial status of each project element delineated in Section 2 above. 

SECTION 5.  SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the fund as 
contained herein under the following conditions: 

a. He may transfer amounts between object line items within the fund up to
One Thousand dollars ($1,000).

SECTION 6.  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

The County Manager is hereby authorized to execute contractual documents under the 
following conditions: 

a. He may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which do not
require formal competitive bid procedures.

b. He may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and

181



materials, or equipment which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations; (2) 
leases of personal property for a duration of one year or less and within budgeted 
departmental appropriations; and (3) services which are within budgeted departmental 
appropriations. 

c. He may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which are of a
duration of one year or less which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations.

SECTION 7.  USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE 

The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this capital project ordinance for 
administration of the budget and for the accounting system. 

ADOPTED this 7th day of April 2014. 

S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 
Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

Mary S. Gilbert 
Clerk to the Board 

182



COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners, North Carolina that pursuant 
to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital 
project ordinance is hereby adopted: 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is design, bid and construction of Bus Parking Project. 

SECTION 2. The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

244,131$         
37,185$           

Bus Parking Lot 
Professional Services 
Contingency 18,684$           

300,000$         

SECTION 3. The following revenues are available to complete this project: 

Transfer from School Capital Construction Fund 300,000$          
300,000$          

SECTION 4. The Finance Director is hereby directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the 
financial status of each project element delineated in Section 2 above. 

SECTION 5.  SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the fund as 
contained herein under the following conditions: 

a. He may transfer amounts between object line items within the fund up to
One Thousand dollars ($1,000).

SECTION 6.  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

The County Manager is hereby authorized to execute contractual documents under the 
following conditions: 

a. He may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which do not
require formal competitive bid procedures.

b. He may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and
materials, or equipment which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations; (2)
leases of personal property for a duration of one year or less and within budgeted

183



departmental appropriations; and (3) services which are within budgeted departmental 
appropriations. 

c. He may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which are of a
duration of one year or less which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations.

SECTION 7.  USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE 

The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this capital project ordinance for 
administration of the budget and for the accounting system. 

ADOPTED this 7th day of April 2014. 

S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 
Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

Mary S. Gilbert 
Clerk to the Board 

184



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
 
 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT (this “License), made and entered into this ____ day 

of ___________, 2014, by and between COUNTY OF CURRITUCK, NORTH CAROLINA, a body 

corporate and politic existing pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina, 

(the “Licensor”), and WHALEHEAD PRESERVATION TRUST AND CURRITUCK WILDLIFE MUSEUM, 

a nonprofit corporation and existing pursuant to the laws of the State of North 

Carolina, (the “Licensee”). 

W I T N E S S E T H : 

 WHEREAS, Licensor has created and registered as a service mark an original 

work of visual art described in the Certificate of Registration attached to this 

agreement as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, and is the sole 

proprietor of the trademark and copyright of such work; and 

 WHEREAS, Licensee desires to use the above described service mark for the 

promotion and enhancement of the planning, production and coordination of the Wine 

& Swine Outer Banks, NC event on the Licensor’s Heritage Park property in Corolla, 

North Carolina managed and operated by Licensee;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of Licensee’s promotion and 

enhancement of the planning, production and coordination of the Wine & Swine Outer 

Banks, NC, Licensor and Licensee agree as follows: 

 1.  Grant of License.  Upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, 

Licensor hereby grants to Licensee a nonexclusive, worldwide license for the full  

to the service mark of an original work of visual art described in Exhibit A hereto, 

(the “Work”).  This License includes the right of Licensee to:  

  (a) display the Work publicly including, without limitation,  

185



   publication on an internet web site and cable television public 

   or government access channel; 

  (b)  reproduce or copy the Work on stationary, note cards, postcards, 

 invitations or other media used for written expression; 

  (c)  prepare derivative works based upon the Work; and 

  (d)  distribute copies of the Work by public sale or other transfer 

 of ownership, or by rental, lease or lending. 

 2.  Warranties.  Licensor hereby warrants and represents as follows: 

  (a)  that Licensor is the sole owner of the work and the right to secure 

 copyright of the Work and of all rights of every character in such 

 Work, and that Licensor has authority to grant the rights hereby 

 conveyed;  

     (b) that such Work is original with Licensor in all respects and that 

 no incident therein contained, and no part thereof, was taken 

 from or based upon any other work of art or in any way infringes 

 upon the copyright or common law right or any other rights of any 

 person;  

     (c)  that such Work is not in the public domain;  

     (d)  that the rights in such Work have in no way been sold, made subject 

 to a security interest, or otherwise disposed of and are free of 

 all liens and claims;  

     (e)  that the production and exhibition of such Work in the form and 

 version produced by Licensee under this License will not in any 

 way infringe upon any rights of any person; and 

     (f)  that Licensor has done nothing that can in any way interfere with 

 the full enjoyment by Licensee of the rights hereby acquired. 

   

186



 3.  Suits against third-party infringement.  Any legal action against any 

alleged infringer of the work of art by third parties shall be initiated and 

prosecuted jointly by Licensor and Licensee, with Licensor and Licensee sharing 

equally in the expense of such legal action and in any amounts recovered as a result 

or related to the infringement. 

 4.  Indemnification.  To the extent authorized by law, Licensor shall 

indemnify Licensee.  If a claim is presented against Licensee alleging that the work 

of art is an infringement of the rights of third parties, Licensor and Licensee shall 

jointly negotiate, compromise, or settle such claim, or defend the institution of 

any action thereunder.  All expenses of defense in such action, including compromise 

or settlement of the claim or action, shall be borne equally by Licensor and Licensee. 

 5.  Binding effect.  This License Agreement is binding upon the parties 

hereto and their respective successors in interest, provided that Licensee may not 

assign this License Agreement or any right therein without the prior written consent 

of the Licensor, and represents the entire understanding between the parties. 

 6. Termination.   Licensor may terminate this License Agreement at anytime 

upon sixty days advance written notice to Licensee. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Licensor and Licensee have entered into this License as 

of the day and year first above written. 

       LICENSOR: 
        
       By:_________________________________ 
        Chair, Board of Commissioners 

       LICENSEE: 
        
       By:_________________________________ 
        President 
 

187



188



189



 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF RECOGNITION OF 

“WW II COASTWISE MERCHANT MARINERS ” 

Findings 1:   The US Merchant Marine Seamen of WW II gained veteran status under a court ruling via Schmacher, 
Willner, et al, V. Secretary of the Air Force Edward C. Aldridge, Jr 665 F Supp 41 (D.D.C 1987)  providing they meet 
certain eligibility requirements. 

Findings 2:  USCG Information Sheet #77 (April 1992) identifies acceptable forms of documentation for eligibility 
meeting the requirements pursuant to Schmacher V. Aldridge, 655 41(D.D.C 1987) 

a.  Certificate of Discharge (Form 718A) 
b. Continuous Discharge Books (ship’s deck/engine logbooks) 
c. Company letters showing vessel names and dates of voyages 
 

Findings 3: Some 10,000 to 30,000 coastwise seagoing tug and barge merchant seamen have been or may be 
denied recognition upon application because actions taken by government agencies (prior to P. L. 95-202) have 
removed required eligibility records from being available to the veteran. 

Findings 4:  Commandant USCG Order of 20 March, 1944 relieves masters of tugs, towboats and seagoing barges 
of the responsibility of submitting reports of seamen shipped or discharged on forms 718A.  This action removes 
item (a) from the eligibility list in Findings 2. 

Findings 5:  USCG Information Sheet # 77 (April, 1992) further states “Deck logs were traditionally considered to be 
the property of the owners of the ships.  After World War II, however, the deck and engine logbooks of vessels 
operated by the War Shipping Administration were turned over to that agency by the ship owners, and were 
destroyed during the 1970s”. This action effectively eliminates item (b) from the eligibility list in Findings 2. 

Findings 6:  Company letters showing vessel names and dates of voyages are highly suspect of ever existing due to 
the strict orders prohibiting even the discussion of ship/troop movement.   Then consider item (c) of Findings 2 
should be removed from the eligibility list. USCG Info Sheet # 77, page 2 refers 

Findings 7:  Commandant, USCG Ltr 5739 Ltr of 09 Apr 2010 states, “The US Government did not issue mariner 
credentials to females during the World War II.”  

Findings 8:  Excerpts from Pres. Roosevelt’s fireside Chat 23: On the Home Front (Oct. 12, 1942):“In order to keep 
stepping up our production, we have had to add millions of workers to the total labor force of the Nation. “In order 
to do this, we shall be compelled to use older men, and handicapped people, and more women, and even grown 
boys and girls, wherever possible and reasonable, to replace men of military age and fitness; to use their summer 
vacations, to work somewhere in the war industries.  

Findings 9:   Post the Revolutionary War; many Acts of Congress were enacted to provide pensions to those 
veterans applying for support. Thousands of servicemen were without documented service and remained without 
any viable means to prove service.  Excerpts from documents retained at the NARA provide: Generally the process 
required an applicant to appear before a court of record in the State of his or her residence to describe under 

190



oath the service for which a pension was claimed. This sets precedence for using certified oaths in conjunction 
with the Social Security documents as alternative documentation.  

Findings (10):  US CG Official Shipping/Discharge documents (Forms 718A) were obtained from the National 
Archives and Records Administration, Wash. DC through the superb support of Mr. Mark Mollan, WW II Senior 
Archivist,  that contained information  proving Active Duty (AD) services for some WW II coastwise barge and tug 
Merchant Mariners.  Together with additional information obtained via a FOIA request to the National Maritime 
Center, research brought forth additional information.  Research conducted between June-August 2013, in 
concert with the NMC, using official records of 1172 coastwise merchant mariners and the USCG Merchant Marine 
Casualties of WW II report of 1950 revealed the following:  
WW II Coastwise Mariners Listing:  Excel Sheet #1 
1172 Mariners identified via official USCG Shipping/Discharge Forms 718A  
    84 Mariners may be women according to their feminine sounding names; OR 7.2% 
1058 Mariners’ ages were specified.  Ages ranged from 10 to 78. 
  583 Mariners identified within draft age and included those in 4F status; OR 55.1% of known ages. 
  525 Mariners identified at over the draft age of 37; OR 49.6% of known ages. 
  114  Mariners with age not specified; OR 09.7% 
    47 Mariners who served were under the age of 17; OR 4.4% of known ages. 
   16 Mariners KIA with 1 receiving DD Form 1300. 
National Maritime Form DD 214 Listing: Excel Sheet #2 
 794 Mariners were identified on NMC Coastwise Mariners listing identifying Active Duty services. 
 291  Mariners on NMC listing had no USCG MMLD numbers listed; OR 36.6% 
   85 Mariners issued DD Form 214 from NMC listing, OR 10.7% of NMC; OR 7.2% of WW II CMM 
Merchant Marine KIA & MIA Casualties from all causes = 9521 * (usmm.org) 

  5662 Mariner Casualties from USCG per 1950 Report * (USCG 1950 casualty report) 
   3859 Mariner Casualties from Other Sources * (Additional sources = Art. Moore and US Congress) 
Merchant Marine Casualties recognized by all sources = 414  
   344 Mariner Casualties from USCG 1950 Casualty Report * (USCG 1950 casualty report) 
     77 Mariner Casualties from NMC report & not listed on USCG 1950 Casualty List * (NMC DD 1300 Report) 
       1 Mariner in NMC DD 1300 files as having received Form DD 1300 yet 16 identified on WW II CM listing 
 
Rationale:  9521 Merchant Mariners KIA or MIA serving and only 414 receiving Veteran status. 

 
Findings 11: The USCG cannot provide a true estimate of merchant mariners serving in WW II. GAO/HEHS-97-196R 
refers. Estimates range from 250,000 to 410,000 from recognized historians. None of these historians were aware 
of these 10,000 to 30,000 coastwise merchant seamen where many served without proper credentials and were 
not included in above estimates. Some were elderly handicapped; others women and some were school children 
who served in a billet, drew wages and paid taxes.  They served on the same vessels in the same hostile war zones 
and performed the same services alongside others who were documented.  Yet, only about 91,000 merchant 
mariners have been recognized as veterans with just 1192 of these veterans in receipt of compensation or 
pension benefits the VA refers.  This is a vast disparity in ratio of the other service branches. 

Findings 12:   DOD and NARA Agreement N1-330-04-1 of Jul, 08, 2004 puts in place a procedure to transfer military 
personnel files of individuals from all services, (including civilian personnel or contractual groups who were later 
accorder military status under the provisions of Public Law 95-202). This agreement affects military personnel 
records of individuals 62 years after separation from service. Action has taken place for all except the US Merchant 
Marine IAW P.L 95-202.  This inaction by the Department of Homeland Security via (COMDT USCG) has caused 
many of the mariners to have gone unrecognized for their services. Many have passed without ever gaining 
recognition or benefits and soon all will be History. Only about 91,000 out of 250,000 have ever received 
recognition as veterans with many unable to gain access because of age and health condition requiring assistance 
for others outside family.  Had compliance taken place, these records would be available to all and providing the 
mariner a chance to being recognized many years ago and enjoying the benefits awarded to them via public law. 

2 
 

191



Whereas:  (1)   By court order, Schumacher v. Aldridge 665 F Supp 41 (D.D.C.  1987) provided for veteran status to 
certain US Merchant Marine seamen during WW II (07 December, 1941 to 31 December, 1946) with the same 
benefits accorded all veterans as administrated by the Veterans Administration.   There were no provisions for the 
elderly handicapped, women or schoolchildren to even be considered for their services as mariners serving 
anywhere within the US Merchant Marine providing an avenue to veteran status. 
 
Whereas: (2)  The USCG Information Sheet #77 of Apr. 1992 identifies specific criteria to be used to prove active 
duty performed by an individual seaman for the purposed of attaining veteran status and findings (5), (6) & (7) 
identified specific official government actions that removed these particular documents from the reach of the 
mariner and clearly identifies the requirement to put in place a method of utilizing alternative documentation and 
other approved methods to take the place of specific documents removed from use by the government actions 
cited in this document.  

Whereas: (3)   Women were removed from ships at the onset of WW II and not allowed to serve in any capacity by 
direction of the War Shipping Administrator, Admiral Emory S. Land.  The Captains of the Ports (USCG COTP) were 
given specific directions to deny official USCG maritime credentials to any woman requesting them.  They served 
but without official credentials in every capacity on most vessels. Families were the sole crew on many barges 
throughout the WW II and afterwards.  Companies welcomed this arrangement because critical crew 
replacements were reduced considerably and allowing those barges to move the bulk war materials more quickly 
freeing the more abled bodied seaman and provided the opportunity to man the larger seagoing ships taking vital 
supplies to troops on all the fronts, keeping the enemy from our doors. A win win situation vital to war defense. To 
date there is no law or other avenue recognizing women as veterans of the US Merchant Marine during WW II 

Whereas: (4)  President Roosevelt’s speech of 12 Oct, 1942 puts in place the use of elderly and handicapped 
individuals, school children and women in an effort to support war efforts by replacing men of military age and 
fitness, and in stepping up our production of war materials for those on the front lines. Women, the elderly 
disabled and schoolchildren entered the varied war defense plant services in droves and many found their way 
into the coastwise barge and tug trades as well. 

Whereas: (5)  DOD & NARA Agreement N1-330-04-1 of July 08, 2004 provides for the transfer of military records 
to the National Personnel Records Center, St. Louis, MO for use as archival records, open to the public. But 
inaction by the DHS for the mariner in over 10 years has caused the veteran loss of due access of his records that 
may have accorded him recognition as a veteran.  Under aged children served this nation in every war.  

Whereas: (6) Previous bills HR 1288, now HR 2189 and S-1361 would have provided for alternative records to be 
used in place of records lost, destroyed or denied for coastwise seamen affected and allowed women and school 
children be recognized for their  services rendered for the first time ever. No laws in place to allow for resolution. 
Note: S 1361 was incorporated into S 1950 and then S 1982 but reduced to a 90 day Process Review, thereby 
losing its effectiveness to recognize any of the coastwise mariners. Both bills were rejected by the Senate.   A 
review of the Process is not warranted or necessary. Both Bills S 1950 and S 1982 were rejected by Senate vote. 

Whereas: (7) The elderly disabled, children and women have served in every war this nation has ever known.  
Most have served without recognition but history is replete with actions of young children stepping up to serve, 
some receiving our highest honors and others serving in our highest ranks of service, congress and the presidency;  
e.g. President Andrew Jackson (age 13); America’s first Admiral, David Glasgow Farragut was appointed a 
midshipman at age 9 by President James Madison; Willie Johnson (age 11) was recipient of the Medal of Honor; 
Albert Cohen of Memphis TN who enlisted at age 11 & KIA age 15.  History is laced with children defending this 
nation and Coastwise Mariners had their fair share of them.   Findings #10 provides support info. 

Whereas: (8) Although they served gallantly and with honor, actions taken against those that were elderly and 
disabled, school children and women by denying them official credentials during WW II is considered 
discrimination today. 

3 
 

192



Whereas: (9) The House Bill HR 2189 contains the original wording as proposed and offers alternative methods of 
recognition for these Coastwise Mariners from WW II.  The proposed Senate Bill S 1982 will only review the 
process used to determine whether an individual performed service under honorable conditions that satisfies the 
requirements of a coastwise merchant seamen who is recognized as having performed active duty service under 
the court ruling via Schmacher, Willner, et al, V. Secretary of the Air Force Edward C. Aldridge Jr 665 f Supp 41 
(D.D.C.1987). There are no considerations in any existing legislation that provides for women who served, under 
aged schoolchildren or elderly handicapped seaman any avenue to attain veteran status.  Nor is there a current 
avenue to use alternative methods of recognition or other actions that have proved effective in past wars for use 
in lieu of documents that were denied and/or destroyed by several specific official government actions. 
  
Whereas: (10) A Process Review of 90 additional days can only conclude that in order to correct this significant 
oversight, legislation will still be required to allow for alternative documentation and other actions that will lead to 
recognition as veterans for these WW II coastwise merchant mariners.  By the time the study is over the 113th 
congress will have expired and all is lost and back to the beginning; thereby again losing precious lives who may 
gain recognition if HR 2189 is allowed to move forward.  Notwithstanding cost associated with a study. 

 

The following actions are recommended:  

 (1) Initiate congressional actions to:   Provide sufficient response to support Merchant Mariners’ provisions of HR 
2189 (with wording intact to insure all coastwise barge and tugboat mariners who served during WW II regardless 
of age, gender or disability) are recognized as veterans in accordance with or similar to:  court ruling via 
Schmacher, Willner, et al, V. Secretary of the Air Force Edward C. Aldridge, Jr 665 F Supp 41 (D.D.C 1987, granting 
veterans status.  

Now, therefore, be it resolved that the Currituck County Board of Commissioners hereby supports the efforts on 
behalf of the World War II Coastwise Merchant Mariners and urges our Representatives in the  
Senate and the House to pass legislation to approve the above recommendations.    

Adopted this the 7th day of April, 2014. 

 

             
      S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 
      Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
     
Mary S. Gilbert 
Clerk to the Board 
       

4 
 

193



 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item Title 

 
 
 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

 
Resolution Declaring Southern Outer Banks Water System Surplus Items 
 
 
 
 
 
Brief Description of Agenda Item 
 
The Southern Outer Banks Water System purchased the Corolla Light Water System in July 2011 and began 
servicing Corolla Light from the SOBWS Water Treatment Plant. The filter equipment in the Corolla Light 
Treatment Plant is no longer useful to SOBWS and with the approval of the Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners we would like to have this equipment declared surplus property for auction on govdeals.com. The 
equipment in the building includes: four steel filters and associated piping. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Action Requested 
 
Action 
 
 
Person Submitting Agenda Item 
 
Patrick Irwin 
 
 
Presenter of Agenda Item 
 
      

194



R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, North Carolina, during its 
regularly scheduled meeting held on April 7, 2014, authorized, pursuant to GS 160A and 270(b), 
that the property listed below be declared surplus and disposed of through auction on 
govdeals.com: 
 

 
Description       
 
Four steel filters and associated piping from Corolla Light Treatment Plant 
 
 
ADOPTED, this 7th day of April, 2014. 
 
             
       S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 
       Board of Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Mary S. Gilbert 
Clerk to the Board 
 

195



R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, 
North Carolina during its regularly scheduled meeting held 
on April 7th, 2014, authorized the following, pursuant to GS 
160A and 270(b), that the property listed below, be disposed 
of at auction or by advertised sale 

 
ASSET YEAR MAKE VIN# YEAR 
3333 1995 JEEP         RIGHT HD 1J4FY29S2SP270662 ML WATER 
5844 2004 JEEP         RIGHT HD 1J4F449S94P772370 ML WATER 
5927 2004 FORD        EXPED. 1FMPU16W94LB57207 EMS 
7226 1995 NISSAN    MAXIMA JNACA21D2ST668331 SHERIFF 
5733 2003 FORD       F150 1FTRF17W83NB50189 ANIMAL CONTROL 
5743 2004 FORD      CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W74X112275 JAIL 
5960 2005 FORD      CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W05X137066 SHERIFF 
6390 2007 DODGE   CHARGER 2B3KA43H97H757839 SHERIFF 
6349 2007 FORD      CROWN VIC 2FAFP71WX7X134629 SHERIFF 
6733 2008 FORD      CROWN VIC 2FAHP71V98X146224 SHERIFF 
6810 2008 NISSAN   TITAN                                                    1N6AA07C78N358242 SHERIFF 
6736 2008 FORD      CROWN VIC 2FAHP71V48X146227 SHERIFF 
7018 2009 DODGE   CHARGER 2B3KA43T49H607841 SHERIFF 
5400 2001 FORD      CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W71X109551 AIRPORT 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of 
Commissioners of County of Currituck reserves the right to 
reject any and all bids.  
 
ADOPTED, this 7th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 
Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Mary Gilbert 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 

196



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title 
 
February 2014 CDBG Monthly Progress Report 
 
 
Brief Description of Agenda Item 
 
Progres report for February’s activities regarding the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). 
 

 
Board Action Requested 
 
Action 
 
 
Person Submitting Agenda Item 
 
 
Tammy Glave 
 
 
Presenter of Agenda Item 
 
 
Ben Woody 
 

197



 

 

 

Memorandum 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM:  Ben Woody, AICP 
  Planning Director 
 
DATE:  March 11, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: February 2014 CDBG #11-C-2308 Scattered Site Housing Project Update 
 

The 2011 Community Development Block Grant remains on schedule for the month of February.  A 
summary of February’s progress follows: 

• Completed the CDBG Monthly Report for signature and forwarded to the Division of 
Community Assistance.  

• Clearance contracts were signed for three reconstruction cases and one dwelling has been 
demolished. 

• Received bids for three septic systems and two wells. Contracts awarded for three septic 
systems and two wells. 

• Secured temporary storage units for reconstruction recipients.  
• Requested temporary relocation payments for reconstruction Case #4. 
• Processed moving expense payments to three reconstruction recipients.  
• Two reconstruction recipients vacated or cleared out their dilapidated homes to prepare 

for demolition. One reconstruction recipient completed the removal of personal belongings 
from their dilapidated home.  

• Received approval and processed payments for reduced water tap fees, Cases #3 and 
#4. 

• Continued ongoing general administration and financial management responsibilities. 
 

Attached is the February Monthly Status Report for your review.  Thank you. 

 

  

COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
Planning and Community Development 

Department 
Planning and Zoning Division 

153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina27929 

Telephone (252) 232-3055 / Fax (252) 
232-3026 

 

198



 

199


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Public Hearing and Action:
	Cover Sheet
	88-66 Case Analysis
	Application
	Site Plan
	Wetland Plat
	Amended Sketch Plan

	Public Hearing and Action:
	Cover Sheet
	87-56 Case Analysis
	Amended Sketch Plan
	Concept Plan
	Community Meeting
	Application and Documents

	Public Hearing and Action:
	Cover Sheet
	13-21 Brumsey Ridge
	Preliminary Plat
	Wetland Delineation

	Public Hearing and Action:
	Cover Sheet
	14-02 Case Analysis

	Public Hearing and Action:
	Cover Sheet
	Moyock SAP

	Presentation on NC 2-1-1 by Keith Letchworth, East Carolina Behavioral Health
	Consideration of Ordinance Amendment to Allow Certain Commercial and Governmental Activities Involving Motor Vehicles on the Beach Strand and Foreshore from the Dare County Line to the North Beach Access Ramp between May 1 and September 30.
	Amendment to Beach Driving Ordinance

	Consideration of Ordinance Amendment to Make Certain Changes to Outdoor Tour Operator Regulations and Provide for Violation as a Civil Offense
	Amendment-Outdoor Tour Operator

	Appointments to Whalehead Solid Waste Advisory Board
	Appointments to Economic Development Advisory Board
	Approval of March 17, 2014, Minutes
	Budget Amendments
	Award of Beach Cleanup Contract
	Project Ordinance - Southern Parallel Taxiway; NC Division of Aviation Grant 36237.8.9.1
	Project Ordinance - Bus Parking Area
	License Agreement Granting Use of Wine & Swine Service Mark
	Exhibit A-Wine and Swine

	Resolution Accepting State Aid to Airports Block Grant and Authorizing County Manager to Enter into a Grant Agreement with NC Department of Transportation for the Southern Parallel Taxiway (Design/Bid/Environmental Documentation
	Resolution in Support of Recognition of World War II Coastwise Merchant Mariners
	Resolution Declaring Southern Outer Banks Water System Surplus Items
	Resolution-Surplus SOBWS Items

	Resolution to declare vehicles surplus
	CDBG Monthly Status Report
	CDBG Report

	April 7 - 84-85.pdf
	2014084
	2014085




